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Message from the 
Governor and Lt. Governor 
of Guam 

Guam International Airport Authority 
The Aviation Hub of Micornesia 

HlIfe Adeil As the aviation hub of Micronesia, the A.B. 

Won Pat Internationat Airport Authofi ty, Guam serves as 
a critical link between the Western PacIfic and the other 
Micronesian islands, as well as Asia and connecting on 
to the South Pacific. The men and women of the airport 
have done a phenomenal job of ensuring that our VIS tors 
and transiting passangers Bfe treated w th the hospitality 

for which our Island Is known. 

This year, Guam has seen an increase in visitors - and 
those numbers are expected to continue to move 

upward. Much of that is due to the hard work of many of 
our people Includlng·the A.B. Won Pat International 
Airport Authority. Guam. The a rport family Is building the 
Inslrastructure to support the-grow ng number 01 visllors. 

They are maating lederal security requlraments. The 
airportls pushing forward with the runway expansion 
project, upgrad;ng the arrivals COrridor and replaCing the 

decades·old baggage system With a new system that Is 
more efficient-

In addition to the increased tourist traffic, the airport 

lamily has been able to help grow the aViatIOn Industry 
on Guam by helping Japan Airlines open their pilot 
training on Guam it's an exciting time lor Guam. We 
appreciate the work of-the men and women of the A.B. 

Won Pat international Airport Authority, Guam who are 
there to lead the way'into a brighter econimlc future. 

Grow with Guam. 

Eddie Baza Calvo 
Governor 01 Guam 

Ray Tenorio 
Lt. Governor 01 Guam 



Jess Q. Torres 
Board Vice Chairman 

Martin J. Garber 
Board Director 

Sonny P. Ada 
Board D rector 

Charles H. Ada II 
E)(ecutNe Mana!)6r 

Edward G. Untalan 
Board Chairman 

Lucy M. Alcorn 
Board Director 

Linda A. Tolan 
Board Director 

Message from the 
Board and Management 

The A.B. Won Pat International Airport AuthOrity, 

Guam is "On it - 24/7", 24 hours a day, 7 days 
a weeki 

37 years ago, public law (P.L. 13-57) created the 
the A.B. Won Pat International Airport AuthOrity, 

Guam as an autonomous agency charged with 
managing the day-to-day operations of the Guam 
International Airport. 

Today, Guam's network of flights include 247 
scheduled flights and over 345 charter flights 

annually, Guam is connected to 27 destinations 
to major cities in Japan, Korea, Taiwan and to 

Australia, Honolulu and Islands throughout 
MicroneSia. Just this past year, we added 3 
destinations to and from Russ'a, direct fl ghts to 
Beijing and we hope to attract new carriers and 

added frequencies in the following year. 

Guam's Airport has become a major driver of the 
island's economy, generating billions of doliars, 

creal1ng thousands of jobs and making a vital 
contnbution to the Guam's trade and tourism by 
strengthening connections with the world. 

The Board and Management are proud of this 

past year's accomplishments and proudly report 
the pos.tlve results in our Annual Report. 
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"Investment in 

knowledge pays 
the best interest. 11 

- Benjamin Franklin 



Finance 
The Guam Airport needs to expand 
and diversify business to keep up with 
the increasing demand for air travel, 
and financing this developlTlent is very 
challenging, With strong managolTlent 
control systelTlS, and our 
understanding of the air transportation 
systelll in our part of the world, the 
A. B, Won Pat International Airport, 
Guam has porfonrled very well in the 
area of Finance, 



;The Airport went to the :.. . -

• 1979 - for S43M to build 

the former air terminal. 

1993 - for $241M which 

built the current airport 
• '*: , 

·2013 - for $247M that 

refinanced the outstanding 

1993 bonds and provides 

new money for $167M in 

terminal and facility 
:;. :. It· 

All bond payments and 

expenses, to Include 

salaries are paid solely by 

Airport revenues. Not one . . - . : 
, . . .. -" 

airport operations. 

Just th i s past year, the 
Airport successfully issued 
and closed $247M in 
General Revenue Bonds in 
September 2013, 
Bond proceeds will fund over $167M terminal and 

facility enhancement projects over the next 3 to 5 

years and infuse money into the local economy. 

Fiscal performance was outstanding in 2013, with 

actual operating revenues 9.7% over projections 

and expenses well below budget by 9.8%. Net 

income was recorded at $15.1 M as compared to a 

decrease of $395,000 in FY2012 based on total 

revenues of $86.7M. This was a 30.4% increase 

year-on-year. 

The airport also maintained a strong Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio of 2.06, well over the 1.25 ratio 

required per the Airport's General Revenue bonds. 
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IIOne's 

destination is 

never a place, but 

a new way of 

seeing things." 

- Henry Miller 





With creative marketi ng of 
airport facilities, and 
viability of our tourism 
market, highlights of some 
of the more significant 
increases include 
• A full flight trnHllng fncillty W[t3 opanad by the ,J3pan Airlines (JAL) to 

train their cJdet pllot2. on two of JAl c fidet models that include the 
873/·800 and the Bf'G/·30Q. Ca(J t'~ts tlf.1ln clJl'ing flOIl I:>uak I-'(Jurs, 
111<1'( rn 7 n~! rurl'.'Ji1Y lise and bn 'arlc ng aircraft oP(H'8tions, This type 'f" 

operations nods to Guam s fullv certified rUn'Ni1Y~, complkmt to IC}\O 
and FA.A standards, and odds to ttlE;: airport's revenUE: be.se £Ind 
bus ness 8:.i v 'ty Jar assoc a:ed serVIC.3 rr,)viders - the tueilland 0[', 

grounJ rHmdl n!:1 Lornpar, 8:':, hr)te b and food and t1E:Ver8ge and ott)er 
ser\ CE: providers the fllgtlt crew [lnd Insl ructors will utilize durln9 tlleH 

(l1l- s tand tr3 n 119 c~I':.les. 

• Skyrnarl-- A I ' n0~ n (I( Tlustic a I ne O) .. H • .rlltor n Ja!)8I1. toOY iO 

ntelnational sk ies opera! n9 Spl ng char!Drs from ~-l:3r"ta te· C']uam on 
Marctl 2(1 1 :::~. Til 5 is rid Cut vo o' the iiPP'.:al of Guam as a riost lna tiwn 
~:Ind tl1P dornallcl for 1rnvc tu El tlOP ell destina ' orl, ordy 3 rours awa .. 
fwm Japan. 

• Star Flyer, allf)tllt;r J;:lp.:lne~e dnmust c airline a so "~preacl 13 IN !lfl::'~ to 

vtter [ ... tlf!r"8r berviC85 frulTl a new (ln~ll!l' l<itakyustlU, ~Japan ~o Guam 
tJogllln lnn Apr il un J. 8wr F ~ yer t.Jlal"t(1r orJt~ra1 on~ n l a l.Jr~ ava l ab lt.1 
2,000 add onal soat::, to Guam frunl thJt !leW marl.or. 

• Guam Airport::: profile 3!:; ::J '.' ioble tranSit and technical stop fnr alrl nee 
It/as enclorsed Villi, PI,d ppm8 Airlines' use of Guam as a technical slop 

in its So.n Froncisco to r ... ·1aniI3 route. Te~h stops 3dd to tile Airport s 
revenue base Gnd enhances the airport's reputation 38 an important 
trans ,t and t()(..iln ical s ' op n the As ~·Pacifir; area. 

• 1< 0 ' ean A "lIfle5 (":OlTlITlBr1(';" tl cj charter bt3rv Cb lrom now on~p BUS;:.1I"1. 
I,orea tw co woeldy, u ~ liz w] a 873,-800 and me nta neel tl10se SDrw:;.es 

uperatlng al tllroughout?O 13. 

Cap}.Yl1r. [@JCHINAAIRLlNES ;:& A DEL T A EVAA,RD , 'IN * * 

.\~ 
/E/UA'R V " "lnA'I"' KSRMN AIR ,,/~ Philippi"" AI,Iln"s U NIT E D !§I 
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"The customer 

experience is the 

next competitive 

battleground. " 
- Jerry Gregoire CIO, 

Dell Computers 
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Service 
And Community 
Engagement 
The A, g, Won Pat International Airport, 
Guam recognizes the importance of its 
trole in our island cOllltllunity, That is 
why there are core objectives in 
engaging the cOlllmunity and being 
an active and positive player with our 
stakeholcjers that include Guarrl's 
residonts: neighboring villa~jes, our 
airlines and tenants and visitors to 
our island, 



COMMUNICATION 
Vvo c()rnmUn caw with l)ur sland COlmnUI ~ ty anli prov(jf.: forums for tv:a way 
d·s;~.uss ons: 

• www.9uama-rpor·.(.(.n1iS an 8CtiVt) In:Oflll3tlon pl)rtal a,)(:oss l tl~') by pveryons, 
ViVOS .y 

• C()n:d":: rriorrnatl()n l)f kfN a rpolt personnel and tonants are rut)1 sl18d on our si!(). 
• W8 (?flga~18 nduSirY urgan iJi -(Jns to cl S(U3S (Iur CHP:i8 ",nr.Jrovurnell' plo[lmrn and 

!)LJS ness OpDortur r t €:s 
• T 18 A rpnrt 110 ds bOHrd pvS ;'ons n !11U ~Jrf:~c;tj~J;GUS Airpurts C().Jlll.illllt~rn,lti(JI'la1 

(AGI) - ASI3 Pacific region. and the Pacific A. 3Soci8tlon of Travel Agents IPATAI and is 
VeT:": Be tl .... e In netv'JOrk 119 and preS(~nt'n9 In Industry con1erences in 1he region 

• ActiVE' (.lJITIrn HI cat f)1 v H rned (;1 ,elease::~, A rport OIinOUl1cernbnts, i:Wport articles 
and other nJPvTt~ faa'ur flU tho A:rp()rt ~j lrequent and hl3ips r,fonn tilt: lJub!ic (If 

Air :'or1 opewl XIS, 

EMPLOYMENT 
Aupvrt OpOIC.t ons J'jI'OV ue tHl est rlli:ltt?d 2,200 d reel and it1d,Tect ;,)b5 tt18t cons st fJ: 
occupations 'Nlth <3 rl nes, alrJ_!ol~ service prov deI's, ,:::I)nstrU(:t,on. maintenance servi,.:.e, 
tec.tm C J SllPIJort, ~l r""olt ITlEm,1gernent, reJern and local regu d:OIY agone PS, ar1(1 
s()Cllr '~Y and mv enf1.)rcorr rmt in n<ltno ~1 :\'!rW 

EDUCATION 
Tt18 /l.iq.Jort Auttl() ty enga\dPt. students "Jr I~ J urgar. :rat,OnE. iO know more about 'he 
a q'('rt and G(JI1<::; (ier futuro UTlp oyrno 11 fJpi):'r:lJl"l lt 8$ . W';1 have [In ar ... ! VO 5Cf"rC/{) tDur 
PJClgram tl1at IS ava al) e i'_' a ~' udoJl' S 111 puiJ <:; ancl privatt) ed1j(:ai ('n, h'jl11e s(...llI),)1 
:jruuI-'s, and othf'T r)r~lCln ~atiollS :-::t.l' .. h a~' the Boy anti (lrl Scouts rJ! AlTlen~a l1..lllIiS·TI 
Ed If.a· una COUIIC I, I'lat tJn(-l Tr,mspDr1'.I' on Summer Ins~jtUi.e F'rogrdm flOITl tt t) 13Udrn 
Curnmurr ty Co'II:'gG and (Aller SUfllrne camps. 

Cdreer Cia',' p)(~t-!;:nTat ii JrfS 3r8 an mrJortant rool tOI Airport Mal1a~lement, airport 
firefighters and pollee officers and operations per:;onnel and our airline!; <Jnd tenants to 
engage d1:·dlen n n ' .!dle anri h gh SOIOO!S to cOl lskier tl10 myr ;:'IU cmeer O)_1'J0riUr tic:s 
n the aviat on rlc!ustry. 

HEALTH AND WELL-BEING 
A 'iblsnt .')nc! he3itllY COJnmun ty IS mponant 'Of tl18 A rpc.'rt to operate Slj(.,:;i3SS'ully 

The tvlaln T(~rmina arri a Alrpor' ~) ,.1 (j,n...;;; HW a dc'S gnatrx1 as nUll 'Snlu\<".If'!j tacl lt.!?:::.. 
For surround,ng nel~J I )mllO,xis a1focicd by airport noise tl"lC Suund So ul r, ms pro~llarn 
has t)(mn mii gatifl{J hornes ':mCI builcl.ng :::. io r.)dUi (, Inter r 110lS0 to corn'or1ablc ieve s. 

Ernp 0Yl)8S CU0 encouraged to Pdft c. pate n 0clucatona and ptlys":'o ploSlmms 
SPOIlSCJrOC! bv the A1rpol1 Authonty Ulat I)romote healthy !Iv ng such 33 nutritIC,n ! i1S~0S 
srtlokng Gessat'on. ?urnua, padding, ami r.Jll1IrQ Hnd 'NakintJ. 

The AIrport is working with the Ai "ports Council IntelTlatro lal - A31[t Pac fic 11'1 it~ An port 
Carbon Accreditation prog 'am, wllieh Independently as::;eGS8r; and recognl.:en L1irport'c 
efforts to manage and reduce the'T CO ; emissions. 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 
Tile Guam A "p')rt AUtllOf ty s cotnm !ted t i. ' provicilng tho L)081 pOSSil)lo s81vices ane! 
facilit as trJr VIS tors to n18 airport , This corrrntrnent IS r/fered n partnerst,-p IN ~t1 a 
rlurnlJsr oj oHler serv co providers nr-Iud:ng ~ he airlines , l"1af1(.Hin~.J a~Jerlt!:;i 
(:oncE'ss:(lnalr8s and otlle governm~)nt rt3gulatory agenc·o'J. 

A bifJ part \)f our customer stJrvice s ('ur Arnbass3\"jor Progrdl1l, 'Nhir.:h pr("lides 
multi-lingual assistance in filling Qui forms and friendly v/elcorning Interaction WIth our 
)assengers In 1)lJr imlTI'gratlon hall. The Airpol1 Informa10n Center is a so a viTal 
component of our hospitality tt18t prOVides information .about Guam, Tran .. :portatlon 
A-ccommoc1at ans and locating any type of sorvic0 a v sitol Oil Guam IllcIY need 
The Alrpol1 makes 8very effort to prov ue a sate, cie(.~n and welcornin~l a'nJol1 
environrnent. We mon tor clJstomer feedback ane'! assess sa' ~fact on through QUI' 
Airport Intorrnatl(.'r) Centor. 

As p<1n of aUI" ongurng commitment to sigoifc~mtly .mpr,)ve tile passenger experience 3t 
Guam Arport, n1ere tlclVe t)een restroom and food court upgrades Pfovls'on of a fam y 
room, and ;uturt1 )J ailS to facilitate passf.:mgers arr ival to an aestiletically pleasing 
er vironrnent ITeet n9 a s(.lfotv ~md ser::ur ty regu:at OilS unposed on Interrratiolltli travel, 

Tile Airport is committed to Joining tile ASO (Airport Service Quality) progmm under Ihe 
ACI ASI!) PDc.fic organlzDtlon .... vrich is nn to help nirports in their continuing effol1s to 
improve the quo!1ty of saf\;b~ experienced by passengers. Tile plog1om 'Idenlifiec and 
d ssernlnates best PI Bet ce from top-perform ng allports ap')u!lti the WOI d 
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"Aviation is proof 

that given the 

will, we have the 

capacity to 
achieve the 

impossible. " 

- Edward Vernon 
Rickenbacker, 
Aviator 
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Witl-) theso 
Improvements, the 

Guam Airport ooks 
forwarcl to a bright 
futur'e as a hub lor 

trdvel in Asia and the 
Pacific and soon 

being able to 
acconlrTloclate 10n~J 

range, long haul 
flights across tile 

Pacific Ocean, 
expanding serVices, 

fUliilering its reaches 
and proviciing mOI8 

opportunity for the 
islanci and 
its people. 

First Priority 
INTERNATIONAL ARRIVALS CORRIDOR 
ConstrL cllon of a 3rd level corndor tor 
arrIVIng passengers will permanentlv 
solve the TSA mal1date to separate 
arr vlng and passengers. 

PHASE 3 NEAR-FAULT SEISMIC 
UPGRADE 
Installation at Terminal Structure Sejsmic 
upgrades for the central termmat and 
east concourse. 

HOLD BAG SCREENING RELOCATION 
Relocation of the bu ky baggage screening 
to the back of the ticket counters. freeing 
up space m Ihe tICket lobbies. 

SECURITY SCREENING CONTROL POINT 
Instaltation of addltionet screenSlg 
lanes wh ch adds space to the 
Welt-Wishers Lobby 

FLIGHT INFORMATION DISPLAY 
REPLACEMENT 
Replacement & Update of the flight 
Information display monitors throughout 
the terminal. 

INTEGRATED PASSENGER LOADING 
BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
Replacement 01 passenger jetways 
and air condition handling umts ror 
landing bridges. 

COMMON USE CHECK-IN FACILITIES 
M!gration to the Common Use 
Check-in Syslem will al aw ait a rl nes to 
use any IIcket counter for check-in 
process. allow1ng for maximized use of 
check-In counters. 

FUEL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
Improvement of lire suppression system 
and connections in terminal. 

PARKING EXPANSION 
Addition of a s,ngle level parking 
deck to the Terminal Parking area. 
expanding parking capacity and 
Improving passenger service. 

INTER-ISLAND PASSENGER FACILITY 
Construclion of B separate facility for a 
commuter terminaVdomeslic Inter-island 
operat cns rOf passerger convenience. 

AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND FIRE 
FIGHTING (ARFF) FACILITY 
REPLACEMENT 
Construclion of a new ARFF FaCiMy fully 
code compl'ant With FAA standards. 

CARGO APRON RELOCATION 
ExpansIon of new Apron area for cargo, 
adjacent to Inlegrated Air Cargo FaCility. 

REPLACE TERMINAL SEATING 
Replacement of new passenger seating 
systems with newer seals Ihroughout 
the terminal. 

Second Priol-ity 
PHASE 4 NEAR-FAULT SEISMIC 
UPGRADE 
Structural Upgrade Installation of Central 
Terminal. Fronl. Back and Core 10 
withstand earthquakes. 

ACCESS CONTROL AND SECURITY 
IMPROVEMENTS 
Enhancement of access control pOints 
With mproved secur ty programs to 
Include b ometrlcs 

TERMINAL FLOORING REPLACEMENT 
Inslallabon 01 new. durable and sale 
flOOring material throughout the term.nal. 

UPGRADE AIRPORT IT AND FMS 
Upgrading of AIrport Information 
Tecllnology and Fnanclal 
Management Systems. 

ROUTE 10A LANDSCAPE COMPONENT 
Landscap ng of RI. 1 OA roadways 
consistent w th Department of Public 
Works expanded roadway project. 

ENCLOSE ARRIVAL TUNNELS 
Enclosure of the Arnval tunne!s 
lead n9 out 10 Ihe parking lot. w l'>:ch will 
ildd arnvals lobby space. 

REPLACE CONVEYANCE SYSTEMS 
Replacement 01 termlnaJ elevators. 
escalators and moving waH<ways With 
modern energy efficient equ pment. 

STRENGTHEN AND EXPAND 
CURBSIDE CANOPIES 
Insta Iatlon of expanded curbside canopies 
for extended protection from inclement 
weather and secunty re nforeemsnt . 

[ 
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"There isn It a flight 

goes by when I don It 

stare out of the window 

and thank my stars for 
what 11m seeing and 
feeling. II 

- Richard Branson. pilot and 

founder of Virgin Atlantic 



Operations 
Flying and take-offs are a nOrillal part 
of Airport Operations, and is fully 
dependent on runways, taxiways, 
airfield lighting, aircraft related 
equipillent, and correlated technical 
services, 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week, the Gualll Airport operates to 
accornmodate the 52,725 flights that 
occurred just last year at the A, B, 

Won Pat International Airport. ThesG 
aircraft Illovements consisted of 
operations of cOllllllercial jets, 
COllllClluter aircraft, tecJlnical stops, 
charters, private jets and student pilot 
trainirl~j, to name a few, 



The diverse array of ai rcraft 
using our facilities are 
dependent upon safe and 
ful ly compliant airfield and 
the Guam Airport 
Operations division is key 
to the provision of air 
services to Guam. 
The a .... pertise oncJ qU3i1fic3tlons of .Airport Operations st3ff 13 te::: ted annual ly by 

thf~~ FAA n HI8 r dnnua nSfJect (ms (If d rr~ cJrt "acilitlf::s ol"lrJ 0 lJerations r8Gorfjs. 

FAA's 2013 evaluation resulte(i In the GU3nl Airport retainIng full certification os c 
commerCia Air/Jor· and fu Iy comp i;Jnt w ~t1 FA;\ rulet. anLl re(.lI.J dtions . Guarn 
AIr~)(lrt was tWI:; ll rl(\~t7d as lJt~ ng a m'tcJer n ttlr} reg on, ."1r1'1 d slii ling 0xcHnpia to 
reglonDI D rports in the Western Pacafir::. 

Airport Operations is the dwty Interface with all airlines, federal and 
r(:~Ju t:l tory ;J~Jorl(,; : es such [IS tile Trdflsp0rtat 011 SOCll! ty Adrn n strot un, tilt) 

US CustolTlS anti BorJel Pro~er..t 011, and 0')8 Guam Cu.::;torns and OW.llIlli i ne. 
AJded i(\ tlla t IS tlle US D(.~partrllent (;1 Aj r C I turtJ that ass st In th~ cr;ntrf,) o· 
w lei 1f t) 011 our runways and tho constru..,t ion c ')mpan es tl1St are alwavs 
improv·ng our airfield. the ::urc.ratt lueler::; ground support ctaff, 3nd othel 
3Upport zerw::ez involved in c:urfield rn:llnten,:::lnce Gnd operations . 

nle Guam Alrpor· b the bus pst A rpr)rt In tt1F.: M cronesI8n reU lon anLi an 

ImprJriClrlt l·lUb for one r:,j HlO argest carnere.; In the world. A ollg w Hl rjtller 

signatory aullne::>, onu ne\\, OIl" service providers , GU3rn s options to fly to 
rna.t.Jf c it ies, and COnnec.1 \i ·1y to (wer 9 ('r)unil es is a gl881 dr'ver uf the 

IslDnd 's opportun'ty to benefit economically and tlul,' be a global player. 
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Operational Stats and Performance 

arrivals 

1 00,000 

transit 
500,000 

400,000 

300,000 

200,000 

100,000 

cargo(metric tons) 

35,000 

30,000 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

1,400,000 

1,300,000 

1,200,000 

1,100,000 

1,000.000 

50,000 

45,000 

40,000 

35,000 

30,000 

deQam:utes 

landing/takeoffs 

gross take off weight 
(in 1000's pounds) 

3,25O,OOO_-==-===-= 

2,250,000 
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Repolt of Independent Auditors 

The Board of Directors 
Antonio B. Won Pat International Airpo11 Authority, Guam 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the Antonio B. Won Pat 
International Airport Authority. Guam (the Authority). a component unit of the Government of 
Guam. as of September 30. 2013 and 2012. and the related statements of revenues. expenses and 
changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended. and the related notes to the 
financial statements. which collectively comPrise the Authority' s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents . 

• lfanagt.'lIIellt's Rt.'sponsibility/or tile Fillancial Stlltt!IIIt.'1/tS 

Management is responsible fur the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in confurmity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design. 
implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fuu­
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to frand 
or error. 

AI/ditor's Respollsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these fmancial statements based on 011f audits. We 
conducted 011£ audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in GOl'ernment Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing proced11fes to obtain audit e~;dence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, The proced11fes selected depend on the auditor' s 
judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements. whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
interna.l control relevant to the entity's preparation and fuu- presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the cu-c11fllStances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity' s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estinIates made by 
management, as well as e1.'lIluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit e,,;dence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis fur our audit opinions. 
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Opi1/iolls 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fuirly. in all material respects. 
the respective financial position of the Authority as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable. cash flows thereof for the years 
then ended in confurmity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Adoptio1/ o/GASB SttIte1llmt No. 65, "Ite1lls Prn;olls{I' Reported as Assets alld Liabilities" 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Authority restated its 2012 financial 
stat=nts as a result of the adoption of Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
State~nt No. 65, "ltllms Previously Reportsd as Assets and LiabiUriss", effective October I . 
2011 . Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Rt!qllired SlIpplt!llll!lltary I"/or1llario,, 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the Management' s Discussion and 
Analysis on pages 4 through 17 and the schedule of Funding Progress on page 55. be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a pan of the basic 
financial statements. is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reponing for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supple~ntary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States. which consisted of inquiries of manag=nt about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries. the basic financial statements. and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not ""Press an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

SlIpplt!1IIellfa,,' alld Ot"" I,,/onl/arioll 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial state~ts that 
collectively comprise the Authority' s basic financial statements. The supplementary information 
included in pages 56 through 59 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial state~nts. 

The supplementary information included in pages 56 through 59 is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the supplementary 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole. 
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SlIpplf!II"!lIIory 01111 Otller Illforlllorioll, cOllriulled 

The 2013 Schffiule 9 Employee Data on page 60 has not been subjected to tbe auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of tbe basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or pro .... ide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by G01'eT'lIl11eJ1tAlldi!illg Stoudards 

In accordance with GOl'emmellt Alldilillg Stalldards. we also ha .... e issued OUr report dated 
January 30,2014 on our consideration oftbe Authority's internal control o .... er financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain pro .... isions of laws. regulations. comracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control o .... er financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit perfurmffi in accordance with Go.-emmellt Audiling 
Standards in considering the Authority's internal control O\'er financial reporting and 
compliance. 

~TMJ,.LP 

January 30, 2014 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended September 30, 2013 

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Antonio B. Won Pat International 
Airpon Authority, Guam's (the Authority) activities and financial perfonIWlce provides the 
reader with an introduction and oven,iew to the financial statements for the fiscal year ("FY") 
ended September 30, 2013. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be 
read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto. which follow this section. 

The Authority was created by Public Law 13-57 (as amended) as a component unit of the 
Government of Guam (GovGuam) to own and operate the facilities of the Guam International 
Airport Terminal (the Terminal). 

The Authority is a self-sustaining autonomous government agency, and operates and maintains 
the Terminal The Terminal provides facilities for commuter and domestic overseas flights. and 
international flights to destinations in Micronesia, Asia and Australia. It is authorized to impose 
and coJlect rates and charges for the Terminal's sen.'ices and properties to generate re,'enues to 
fund operating expenses. The 2003 Airport Bonds issued by the Authority, federal grants and 
airport re\..,nues funded the construction of the Airport Terminal Building and the Capital 
Improvement Program. The Authority issued the 2013 Airport Bonds during the founh quarter 
of FY 2013 that refunded the 2003 bonds and provided funds for planned capital improvement 
projects. 

A. :'IIission Statement 

The Authority strives to ensure the safety and security of the traveling public, is dedicated to 
maintaining a superior and reliable le\..,1 of airport sen.'ices for our island residents and tourists, 
and is committed to supporting the development of air linkages and filcilities which are integral 
parts of the island' s future economic growth. The Authority' s ,'ision is to advance Guam funher 
as the first class premier air transportation hub of the region. 

B. tisin& the Financial Statements 

The Authority utilizes the flow of economic measurement focus. Financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as 
applied to governmental units using the accrual basis of accounting. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Authority has implemented 
GASB Statement No. 20 and elected not to apply Financial Accounting Standards Board 
("FASBJ Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Autholity. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, continued 

B. Using the Financial Statements, continned 

Reven~s are categorized as either operating or non-operating based upon definillons provided 
by GASB Statement No. 34. Significant recurring sources ofthe Authority's revenues, including 
federal grants are reported as non-operating revenues. 

C. Authority Acti,;ties and Highlights 

Passenger activity in FY 20\3 approached record level fur the Authority. Total FY 2013 
passenger enplanements bordered on the I. 7 million threshold. FY 2013 signatory enplanements 
of 1.693.962 and total enplanements of 1,697.986 exceeded the prior year by 8.1% and 7.8%. 
respectively. When compared to budget projections, actual signatory airline enplanements 
increased by 6.6%. 

The Authority continued to position itself as the eighth ranked airport for international arri\"lIls 
for aU U.S. ports of entry ahead of large airports such as Chicago and Atlanta. Over 90% of the 
Authority' s enplanements are international from Origin & Destination markets. 

During the fiscal year, the Authority expended a considerable amount of energy, time and 
resources in preparation fur the refunding of 2003 Airport Bonds. Multiple sessions occurred 
with Guam Economic Development Agency (GEDA). bond counsel and underwriters and rating 
agencies, Moody' s and Standard & Poor's. A special legislative session caUed by the Governor 
resulted in the eventual passage of the Authority·s required bond legislatiolL Outreach 
presentations in the major financial markets to prospective bond buyers. a first fur the Authority, 
generated overwhelming interest during the bond sale to the tune ofSI.8 bi11iolL In September 
2013. these efforts culminated in the closing of the Series 2013 Airport Bonds in the amount of 
S247,335,000. 

After an exhaustive proposal review and evaluation process, the Authority selected and 
contracted with a new specialty retail concessionaire. Despite the disclosure of legal chaUenges, 
the substantial increase in the minimum annual guarantee (MAG) supported the Authority's 
initiative to inclnde about $110 mi11ion in new money fur capital improvement projects as part of 
the 20\3 Airport Bonds. The new MAG of $15.4 million is a 285% increase over the prior 
contract MAG of $4 million and the percentage rent of 31 % is a 155% increase over the prior 
percentage rent of 20 - 22.5%. The Authority is highly confident ibnt the new concessionaire 
will provide vibrant and exciting products, innovative services to the passengers and a 100% 
focus on ailport retail sales. 

In a highly competitive req~st for proposals procurement, the Authority selected a new operator 
for its fuel system operations and maintenance program. The new operator brings a fresh 
perspective fur efficient and cost effective operations, an enhanced quality control and assurance 
program and a secured environment for a critical element of the ailport infrastructure. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Autholity. Guam 

Management 's Discussion and Analysis, continued 

C. Authority Acthities and Hi&hli&hts, continued 

Although the energy management program was yet to be completed at the end ofFY 2013, key 
milestones were met during the year with the installation of energy efficient lighting and the 
installation of new chillers, cooling towers and air handling units which largely comprised the air 
conditioning system for the terminal. The laner mitigated the recurring condition of high 
temperatures in the building that impacted the passengers. employees and retail products. 

Going forward to FY 2014. the Authority seeks to maintain the FY 2013 signatory enplanement 
le\·e! with a slight uptick of 1.0% or 1.71l.959 enplanements based on airline budgeted forecasts . 
There are uncertainties with the devaluation of currencies from our major markets, particularly 
with Japan. and its contractionary impact on leisure travel: consumer confidence in their local 
economies: unstable fuel costs: and the U.S. fiscal recovery. The Authority recognizes the 
sensiti"ities of operating in a resort destination and has worked to sustain and increase its cash 
reserves. 

Activities for the Authority for the years ended September 30. 2013, 2012. and 2011 are as 
follows: 

2013 
% locrt:1Se 
(Decreast) 

2013 2012 2011 Item 2012 
Major rt\= soorces: 

Landing frrs S 2.963,427 S 3.042.109 S 2,567.747 -2.6% 
TmninaJ 11,252,173 10,861.087 10.618.530 3.6~'. 
COIIcessiOllS:md padting 18.022.564 15.899.179 14.762.957 13.4% 

Total Sl') ')]8 164 $2980'375 $27049 ",4 8.2% 

Passmgtr (eopJan=rnts) activity: 
Sipcxy :rirlines 1,693,962 1,566,356 1,416.873 8.W. 
Othtr :rirIines 4.024 8.135 22.551 -50.5% 

Total eoplanemeots ! 697 286 1574491 ! 439424 7.8% 

Aircraft operations 5' 7'5 48750 4ti 030 82% 

Aircraft landed wrights (000) 3.258.721 3.296.664 2.787.086 -12% 

O&:Dpasseog= 2,984,067 2,819,665 2,548,446 5.8% 
Transfrrp~s 199.567 167.328 175.181 19.3% 

T ot2I p3sse0g= ~ I§~ Q~ ~9§Q22~ ~Ll3 627 6.6% 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. continued 

C. Authorit~· Acthitips 3nd Highlights, continupd 

1.750,000 
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1,300.000 
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Signatory Enplantmtnts 
1,693,962 

1,566.356 

FY2013 FY20l2 

1.416,873 

FY2011 

For FY 2013, the signatory airlines cost per enplaned passenger (CPE) of S17.24 is an increase 
from the $16.81 CPE in FY 2012 or a modest 2.6% increase. The increased expenditure level is 
largely attributed to higher utility costs, debt service on the energy management loan and the 
phased implementation of the employee compensation plan. 

Despite the increase in CPE, the Authority still maintained a competiti,'e cost structure and 
managed to achieve a debt service coverage of2.06 versus the 1.25 debt service requirements of 
the former 2003 and new 2013 bond covenants. Moreover, the Authority continued to maintain 
a superior and reliable level of airport services in the facilitation of passengers and cargo to their 
destinations safely, efficiently, and effectively. key success fitctors paramount to the Authority's 
financial success, while promoting commerce and connectivity to oue neighboring islands and 
countries in the region. 

The following airlines served the Authority with scheduled passenger service for FY 2013 : 
United Airlines, Delta Airlines, China Airlines, Japan Airlines. Korean Airlines, Philippine 
Airlines, Jin Air. Eva Air. Jeju Airlines and Aerospace Concepts with the latter operating a 
business jet service. Intermittent charters with passenger service included Skymark and 
Starflyer. both out of Japan. 

The principal commuter airlines providing inter. island passenger flight service to and from 
Guam and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CMNI) are Freedom Air. 
Micronesian Aviation Systems, and Cape Air. Cargo operators include Asia Pacific Airlines, 
Federal Express and UPS. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. continued 

D. Finaudal Opuatiou Highlight.s 

For IT 2013, total revenues amounted to $86.7 million, an increase of 30.4% year-over-year 
versus FY 2012 amount of $665 million. Operating income which amounted to $59.8 million 
accounted for 69.0% of all revenue in 2013. The remaining 31.0% or $26.9 million of revenue 
was comprised of non-operating income that included interest income, passenger facility 
charges, and grants from the U.S. government and transfers from Go~-Guam. 

The Authority continues to focus efforts to expand and diversify the non-airline revenue stream. 

Operatiollal Re,'emles 

The $59.8 million in operational revenues earned in FY 2013 represented a 13.9% increase 
versus the $52.5 million recorded in IT 2012. This increase in operating revenue may be 
anributed to the increase in non-aeronautical revenue streams which accounted for 53% of the 
Authority's operating re~-euue in 2013. Concession fees increased to $18.0 million or 13.2% 
year-on-year, versus the $15.9 million in 2012. General merchandise revenue rose 22.4% but 
resulted in a decreased a~-erage spend per enplaned passenger of approximately $17.94 in 2013 
versus $22.91 in 2012. Ground transportation rose 7.5% from $4.8 million to $5.2 million due to 
increased passenger activity. Rental income increased by 3.6% for the same period with non­
airline rentals reflecting an increase of4.6%, up $4.0 milliou from S3.8 millinn. 

NOll-Operatillg Re1'l!!IIIIes 

Non-operating revenues increased in FY 2013 by 91.8% versus 2012, $27 million versus $14.1 
million respectively. The increase in FY 2013 is primarily attributed to the increase in grants 
from the U.S. gO"liernment which amounted to $17.4 million and interest income of $2.97 
million. 

Op~ratiollal E:.pe".es 

For IT 2013, operational expenses which equaled $38.4 million. reflects a 9.3% year-o.-er-year 
increase from FY 2012' s amount of$35.1 million. The increase of25.5% for personnel services 
was due to the phased implementation of the authority' s compensation plan. The number of FuJI 
Time Employee (FTE) employees decreased by 1.0%, from 192 to 190. 

R,,.;,!\' ofNerableE,'mrs;lI UiOH 

The recovery in 2012 from the Japan disaster and an upswing in passenger activity sustained that 
momentum forward to 2013 and continued that positive trend throughout the year similarly 
pegged to historically high .-isitor peak months. IT 2013 signatory enplanements of 1.693,962 
and total enplanements of 1,697,986 exceeded the prior year by 8.1% and 7.8%, respectively. 
These are the second highest totals in the Authority' s histOty. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport AuthOlity. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. continued 

D. Financial Op"rntion Highlights, continu"d 

R"";eU" ofNotnble E.'ell" ;11 FY 2013. COllt;IIIIt!t1 

In September 2013. the Authority closed the sale on the Series 2013 Airpon Boods in the amolUlt 
of $247,375 .000. There was high drama in the days preceding the sale with global and national 
events that could induce an increase to municipal bond interest rates and make the bond 
refunding unfeasible and exceed the interest rate cap imposed by law. Those events such as the 
potential U.S. inter;'ention in the Syri., conflict and concerns with high risk actions by Puerto 
Rico on their gO\"emlDent debt were apparently offset by the Authority' s online marketing ood 
personalized presentations to potential bond buyers that resulted in S1.8 billion of orders and the 
overwhelming demand yielded a true interest cost (TIC) of 628%. Moody' s Investor Services 
assigned an investment grade rating ofBaa2 to the 2013 Airport Bonds with a stable outlook and 
Standard and Poor' s Rating Services assigned their rating ofBBB with a stable outlook. 

After an exhaustive proposal review and evaluation process, the Authority selected ood 
contracted with a new specialty retail concessionaire. Despite the disclosure of legal challenges, 
the substantial increase in the minimum annual guarantee (MAG) supported the Authority's 
initiative to inclnde about $110 million in new money fur capital improvement projects as part of 
the 2013 Airport Bonds. The new MAG of $15.4 million is a 385% increase over the prior 
contract MAG of $4 million and the percentage rent of 31 % is a 155% increase o .... er the prior 
percentage rent of 20 - 22.5%. The Authority is highly confident that the new concessionaire 
will provide vibrant and exciting products, innovative ser;,;ces to the passengers and a 100% 
focus on ailpon retail sales. 

Key financial metrics include an increase of the signatory airline cost per enplaned passenger 
from $16.81 in FY 2012 to $1724 in FY 2013 and the significant increase of the debt service 
coverage ratio from 1.67 in FY 2012 to 2.06 in FY 2013. The Series 2003 and 2013 Airport 
Bonds require minimum debt ser;';ce coverage of 1.25. 

Following the Department of Public Works' (DPW) completion of the environmental assessment 
that resulted in a mutually acceptable roadway alignment, substantial progress was made in the 
resolution of the Tiyan Parkway project. Surveys and appraisals were completed for both the 
Phase 1 airport property and Phase 2 private property parcels. The legislatute, in two public 
laws, appropriated $1.8 million for the initial private property acquisition. DPW had also 
advertised an invitation for bids fur the Phase I construction with a notice to proceed scheduled 
fur April 2014. A memorandum of understanding was executed between the local and federal 
government stakeholders to formalize pending action items and continued interaction and 
communication. Favorable consideration is being vetted to delay the closure of Central Avenue 
which is an obstruction to the runway safety area (RSA) with the understanding that a U.S. 
congressional mandate requires that all airport RSA' s be cleared and compliant with FAA 
standards by the end of2015. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airpolt Authority, Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. continued 

D. Financial Opuation Highlights, continued 

Ra'i~I' ofNotnble E.'e1ll. ill FY 1013. r01llilllled 

In a highly competitive request for proposals procurement. the Authority selected a new operator 
for its fuel system opmstions and maintenance program. The new operator brings a fresh 
perspective for efficient and cost effective operations. an enhanced quality control and aSSUJ"ance 
program and a secured environment for 8 critical element of the aUpon infrastructure. 

To provide the Authority with a well-defined and strategic plan of action, the Authority procUJ"ed 
and retained an air service development consultant with global experience and relationships. 
Planning sessions are expected during the fllst pan of20l4 in conjunction with Guam Visitor's 
BUJ"eau (GVB) and GEDA. 

Although the energy management program was yet to be completed at the end of FY 2013. key 
milestones were met during the year with the installation of energy efficient lighting and the 
installation of new chillers. cooling towers and air handling units which largely comprised the air 
conditioning system for the terminal. The latter mitigated the recurring condition of high 
temperatures in the building that impacted the passengers. employees and retail products. 
Energy savings of about S1.4 million per year are guaranteed by the performance contractor for 
10 years and. funds . in pan. a shon term. United States Department of Agriculture guaranteed. 
low interest subordinate loan from a local bank. 

During FY 2013 , the Authority completed several key capital improvement projects that 
included the replacement and hardening of the ramp light system for safe aircraft operations: the 
phased installation of an underground power distribution for storm hardening at the south Tiyan 
facilities; and the completion of the na,,-;gational aids for runway 6L. Projects that commenced 
dUJ"ing the year included the rehabilitation of runway 6L124R: Phase 2 of the sound insulation 
program consisting of 30 residential homes: and the replacement of the preconditioned air and 
ground power units for the passenger loading bridges. 

The Authority implemented its second phase of the employee compensation program that was 
de\'e1oped through an independent expert study. The major objectives are for the recruitment 
and retention of the Authority' s hUJ"D8D resource assets. 

AirU,,( Signa,eD· Rqlfs qud Chqrm 

The Authority entered into an airpon operating and lease agreement with signatory airlines to 
provide those airlines with the nonexclusive right to use the airpon facilities . equipment 
improvements, and ser\-;ces, in addition to occupying certain exclusive use premises and 
facilities. In exchange for more mvorable rates. the signatory airlines are guarantors of the 
Authority's financial position. The signatory airlines also unanimously approved the 2013 bond 
financing program and capital projects. These leases became effective October 1. 2006 and with 
an extension oHive years will remain in effect through September 30, 2016. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International AirpOlt Authority. Guam 

Management' s Discussion and Analysis. continued 

D. Financial Operation Highlights, continued 

Adoptioll oj G01'/!rlllll/mtoiAaol/1lfillg Stolldords Boord Stott!1IIt!1If No. 65, ItI!IIIS Prt!1'iollsiy 
R<'portl!d os A ,,<'Is olld Liobiliti<'s. (GASB StOt<'III<'lIt ;\'0. 651 

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 , the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 
65 . As descnbed in Note I - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, the 
implementation of this new statement required the restatement of the Authority's financial 
statements at October I, 20 II. The effect of the restatement was the elimination of the bond 
issue costs and the related amortization expense, which were recorded in the 2012 statement of 
net position and the statement of revenues, expenses. and changes in net position. respectively. 

Fillom:iol Positioll S"''''''OO: 

A condensed summary of the Authority's statements of net position at September 30. 2013, 2012 
and 20 II is shown below: 

2013 % Increase 
2012 2011 (D=ease) from 

ASSETS 2013 As Restated As Restat<d 2012 

Currmt assets: 
Unrestrict<d ClUTent assets S 15.701.558 S 12,549,055 S 7.736.116 25.l ~'O 

Rtstricted C\I1Tent assets 1,449.350 1,661.610 1.779.158 -12. 8!'~ 

Non-<:1URllt assets: 
Unrestricted assets 28,466.289 20,261,161 21,577,162 40.5% 
Restricted assets 130549,525 32,941,612 32,671,610 296.3% 
Capital assets 404,849.728 398,963.653 405,381 ,493 1 .5~~ 

A \;gation easements 10,966,295 11,975.643 12,984.992 -8.4% 
AccO\Ults receivable from tenant 1 047 600 799200 540000 31.1% 

Total assets 593.030,345 479.151.934 482.670531 23.8% 

Deferr<d outllow of resources 2,860,031 3,326,187 -100.0% 

ll.uJIUTIES 

Currmt liabilities: 
Payable from unrestricted assets 14,537,538 10,215,231 9,380,778 42.3% 
Payable from restrict<d assets 1,867,990 15,472,745 14,941,518 -87.9% 

Long term liabilities 259.837.084 155.190.940 160.146.209 67.4% 

Tota1liabilities 276242.612 180 878 916 184468505 52.7% 

Deferred infJow ofr== 585,743 100.0% 

NETPOSmON 

Invested in capitll assets - net 
of ~lated ddJt 154,075,891 249,647,943 253289.589 -38.3% 

Restricted 130,130.885 28,720,477 28,604,250 353.1% 
Unrestrict<d 31995214 1? 764629 19,634,374 40.5% 

Total net position S316,20U?90 S301133 049 5301528213 5.0% 
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Antonio B, Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. continued 

D. Financial Operation Highliehts, contioued 

RI!1'I!""'!S 

A summary of revenues for the years ended September 30,2013,2012 and 2011 and the amount 
and percentage of change in relation to prior year is as follows: 

:!ou 
2011 2012 2011 '~ 1IK7~ 

% :!OI2 ~~ 2011 .. .. (Decra:e) 
20U ofTobI kRamIod ill!!!!! As R.o:t>Iod .fTotd form 2012 

Open""" 
F.ahtio. aod ".,..." =P -...' 

Ani\-a1 balmos S 7,336,052 I .S% S 6,398,217 9.6" S 6,159,123 9.4~ 1..t.7~' 
Ilopu=ob~ 6,942,472 8.0% 6.348530 9.5'" 6,046,101 g~. 9.4'_ 
i'=<l>c .. 1 ....... bridp 4,666,053 5 .·"~ 3,676,307 5j% 3,366,254 s.n. 26.9~ 

t....Im&tee. 2,963,427 3.4'~ 3,042.109 4.6'; 2,567,747 3_~. -2.6% 
Immip>ri .. 2,737.477 3.2% 2.337,874 3 .S~" 2,.210,176 lA' _ 17.l '~ 
Pabhc:aproa 1,691,103 l.~' 2,107,797 3.2'. 1,394,712 !.l~' -I9.r.. 
UtiIny...anry clwp UId oOh ... r..: S.\6,4fi o .~. 474,691 o.m 442,015 o,~. 15.1,. 
FulSow>pf'M 193,538 ~. .. IS3933 --2J.!. ISS956 ~. s.r.~ 

Totd boliu .. md 'Y'I"'" 

""''''-... 27.076.675 31..2~ 24569.458 36.9'. 22.345.154 341~. 10.2% 

c.....:; .. ..." 
<>-oI~ 9,079,521 lO .5~~ 7,420,798 11~" 7,194,836 1\.(1~1 12.4% Gn.oDd __ 

5,165,1110 6 ,Q4:~ 4,803,013 7'1" -,. 4,156,156 6.3', 7.5" 
Car.-l 94S,9Ol 1.1'~ 934,60S 1.4% 931,949 1.4~' 1.5'. 
FoodUldbo. ...... 913,962 1.1'. 902,317 L .. '_ 144,104 1.3'. 13!' 
1n·B."", at""'!: 111,521 O.9'!'. 754,661 1.1'_ 666,113 L~' 7.S" 
OlIo.- 1,123 :!§!! --.ll'" 1,!!!l,7Il ....ll!. 269,§Z! -1.1~' 1.11

• 

TCIbJ ~~OI1 fees 180" ~ ..l2.!I' Il8i12 179 ~. 14,7g.217 ...1L1~' 1l.4!1 

Ru:bl iKa.: 
Oponlioa "'ace · aidu:o 3,469,110 4.~i 3,103,781 4.n. 3,065,873 4,n i 11 .S~ 
Oponba&:pace • ........m.. 3,997,694 4.'~' 3l 820,488 S.;'". 3,749,467 S.~·. 4.6% 
OlIo.- 37U§§! .....i!% l.2.lU18 -...ll% l !l!l,11!!l -..ll'1 -3.9% 

Tow f'IIl1I1 UlCDDe 11 '12 173 ...lL2% 1086IOS7 ...lll" ,. 12618,530 ~. 3.6' • 

~m..-. HlH!i2 ...,ilI1 11:!1'Q2 ....l.1l. 1m 81I --U~. 101.~i 

Toa1~ 59807081 ..§U'\ l2477,233 ,.lW' ~2J!!!4H ...1U." 14.0!' 

N",·OponIiAJ: 
1JII..st IDCDID!! 2,976,706 3.4!1 1,194,681 1.8% l ,lSS,I44 1 .8~:' 149 .2~ 

~ faciIitr clwp 6,559,690 7 ,6~i 6,096,248 9"'" _ .. 5.576,831 &.5,_ 7.6% 
Gnu, i_ tbo U. S. Go ......... 17,435,986 10.1'_ 6,7lL43~ lO.l~' 9,501,361 14 .S~' lSl.3~' 
T .... r.. hmGo, ......... cGoam· ORS 14 ;21 ...M!~ 26JIS J&'I 78063 ----2J." 4U~ 

TobI .... -open!iD& 26,987013 .1ll~' 14 06lI749 -.llJ.. ' . ,. 16JIS406 ~i 91.8% 

Toallft'eDel S S~ 1!Y]6:1 ~. S56 Y661' ~. S ~~ ~'~~ lU' lOA" 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. GuaID 

StateIDelltS of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Year ended Septerrber 30, 
2012 

2013 As restated 
Revenues (Note 5) : 

Facilities and s}'Stems usage charges $ 27,076,675 $ 24,569,458 
Concession mes (Notes 3 ami 9) 18.022.564 15,899,179 
RenIal income (Note 9) 11,252,173 10,861 ,087 
Miscelhneous 3.455.669 1.148.209 

Total revenues 59.807.081 52,477,933 

Operarmg costs and expenses: 

COnlr.\ctual5eI'.i:es (Note 9) 19,387,119 18,950,053 
Personoelseni:es 17.463,657 13,917,232 
Materials and supplies 1,078,754 1,178,487 
Bad debt 497,176 1,105,457 

Total opernrmg costs and expenses 38,426.706 35,15 1,229 

Income from operatDm befure depreciatDn 
and :nmnization 21 ,380,375 17,326,704 

DepreciatDn and :nmnizatDn ( 22,668.001 ) ( 14,193,004 ) 

Loss from operntDm ( 1. 787.626 ) ( 6,866.300 ) 

Non. operating income (expense): 
Passengf!l' f1ciliy charge mcome 6,559,690 6,096,248 
In!ereSl income 2,976,706 1,194,681 
In!ereSl expense ( 6,093,981 ) ( 7,164,599 ) 
Bond issuance cost ( 3,912.357 ) 
Other expenses. net (Note 5) ( 624.178 ) ( 433.014 ) 

Total oon·operatiog expenses, nel ( 1.094.120 ) ( 306.684 ) 

Los5 befure capital grants and transli!r in ( 2,381 ,746 ) ( 7,172,984 ) 

Capital gr.u:IS fi:om the United Stites Go~~Dl 16,489,713 6,369,134 
Operatiog grants Dom the U~ States Go\'1!rnweDl 946,273 382,298 
Transmr from Go\'1!mment of Guam - Ofli:e of 

Highway Sali!ty (OHS) 14,701 26,388 

Total capital and opernrmg J!I3nIS 17.450.687 6.717,820 

Increase (decrease) innel posilon 15,068,941 ( 395,164 ) 

N eI posmn at begjooiog of year (Note 13) 301,133 ,049 301.528.213 

Netposmn at end of~ar $ 316,201.990 $ 301.133,049 

Sell accompanying notes. 20 



Antonio B. Won Pat International AilPOlt Authority, Guam 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year ended Sq>ten:ber 30. 
2012 

2013 As restated 
Cash flOll'S fi1Jm opemting armili.s: 

Cash =eiVM fromcustonrrs $ 56,854,245 $ 50,600.813 
Cash paid to SlWliers mr goods and servi<:es ( 22,258.973 ) ( 19.800.746 ) 
Cash paid to etq>lo~es ( 17.3 17.719 ) ( 13.923.096 ) 

Net rash pro\ided by OPer.ltiog activities 17.277.553 16.876.971 

Cash floll"s D'Omin\"e.5ting acmities: 
Acquisillon ofim_ ( 105.813.041 ) 
Notes recei1.able ( 10.800 ) 
Net sales of investnrnts wiIh trustee 1,045.999 
Im'l:S_ derest iocome 2,976.706 1,194,681 

Net rash (1Rd in) pro~ided by investing activities ( 102.847,135 ) 2,240,680 

Cash flOll'S fi1Jm capital and ,,,Iared finmrcing acmilies: 
AcquisilDn and romtruction of airport ftcildies ( 19.362.008 ) ( 10.655.998 ) 
Net proceeds from2013 Genera1Re\'eI1Ie Bonds 247,540.014 
Prio:ipal pa}ment 0112003 General Re\-ewe Bonds ( 155.005.000 ) ( 9,107,683 ) 
Ja.erest paX! 0112003 General Re-..:me Bonds ( 10.961,195 ) ( 7,90 1,2 19 ) 
l.oancost 172,757 ( 172.757 ) 
Passenger ftciliy charge recet>1S 6,497,519 5,762,941 
U.S. Go\etllllbl! c.~piIal gr:uDs 16,420,402 3,649,065 
Tr:msrer ~Go\~ of Guam- OHS 14,701 26,384 

Net rashpro\ided by(~ in) capilaland 
rebted marring actMties 85.317.190 ( 18.-199.267 ) 

Net (decrease) iocrease it rash ( 252,392 ) 618,384 

Cash at begi::mlg of year 1.918.446 1300.062 

Cash at ~ of}""'- $ 1.666.054 $ 1,918.446 

Consisting oC: 
Unrestn:~ $ 1,633,953 $ 1,844,380 
Restricted - C\lIfM 32,101 74,066 

$ 1,666,054 $ 1,918,446 

~on-cash in\'t!sting and financing acti\ities: 
Dilling the years ended Septem~ 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority recorded an increase to 
capital assets and bank loan totaling $5.333.331 and $5,594,897, respectively, representing loan 
proceeds disbursed directly by rhe bank to a contractor. 

See accompanying notes. 21 

[ 

[ 

[ 

[ 

[ 

[ 



Antonio B. Won Pat International AirpOlt Authority. Guam 

Assets 
Currtllt assets: 

UIRstri:ted asStts: 

Cash (Note 3) 

Statements of Net Position 

Passe~r ftcilily ch:lrge cash (Note 3) 
Accollllls rtcti\-abJe, tr:Ide, Il<'t of allowance mr 

doubtfulaccollllls ofSl,801,951 at Sqltemer 30, 2013 

($1,991 ,620 at SqltenJbec 30, 2012) (Notl1 3) 
AcCOIlllls recen",ble from tenant (Notes 3 and 9) 
Passe~ ftcilily charge recen-ables (Note 3) 

~cei\-ables from the United States Go~omttnt 

Im=tmy and other 

Total umestri:ted Currtllt assets 

Restricted assets: 

Customs res, cash (Note 3) 
Customs res, rtcen-ables (Note J 1) 

Total rtStri:ted ClllTtIlt assets 

Total ClllTOlt assets 

Accollllls rtcen-able from tenant, Wlfestri:ted (Notes 3 and 9) 

Gclrral~\'OIUe Bonds (Note 7) : 

Im-estments and cash will trustees, umestri:ted 

!n\-estments and cash willI trustees, rtStri:~d 

Capilal assets, at cost less acCUll1lbted dtprtcati>n 

(Notes 4 alld J J) 

A\-igati>n easements (Note 4) 

Total assets 

Debed oudlow of resources: 
Dened difIrtoxes on rt1illldmg of2003 bonds (Note 5) 

SIlB accompanying notes. 

s 

Stp~mer 30, 

2012 

2013 As rtstlted 

1,611 ,496 S 

22,457 

8,314,134 

10.800 

957.380 

4,571 ,986 

213,305 

15.701,558 

32,101 

1.417,249 

1,449,350 

17,150,908 

1.047,600 

28,466,289 

130,549,525 

159,015,814 

404,849,728 

10,966,295 

593,030,345 

1,820,208 

24,172 

6.202.347 

895,209 

3,556,402 

50,717 

12,549,055 

74,066 

1,587,544 

1,661,610 

14,210,665 

799,200 

20,261 ,161 

32,941,612 

53,202,773 

398,963,653 

11,975,643 

479,151,934 

2,860,031 

18 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Autholity, Guam 

[ 
Statements of Net Position. continued 

Septenber 30. 
2012 

2013 As restated 
Linbilities 
C\Dl!III liabilities: 

Pa}'3ble from uoresri:ted assets: 
Accoums payable - trade $ 2.435.697 $ 2.752.640 
Accoums payable - construcoon 5,454,840 4,752,646 
Otber liabilities (Note 11) 3.013.828 903.803 
Secuily deposis 1,015,279 1.281.047 
Cln@DlporOOnofamuallea\'\!(Note10) 354,394 308.095 
Cm'ell porOOn ofbnn pn}'3ble to b:wk (Notes 6 and 10) 2.263.500 217.000 

Total pay.lble iom um>stricted assets 14.537.538 10.215,231 

Pay.lble iomrestricted assets: 
CustOIll51i!es pny.lble to Treasurer of Guam (Note 12) 1.867,990 2.042,986 
Genernl Re\'Oi!IllIe Bond.~· 

ClUeOl DstaIheIlls (Notes 5 m.d 10) 9.590.000 
Aa:rued inerest 3,839.759 

Total pay.lble iomrestricted assets 1.867.990 15.472.745 

Total ClUeDlliabmlies 16.405,528 25.687,976 

Non-cureOIliabiliies: 
Pay.lble iom umesri:ted assets: 

Accrued sick Iea\l! (Notes 8 m.d 10) 197.783 159.480 
Long-tennporOOnofanwallea\l! (Note 10) 748.412 687.076 
Long-tennlonnpa}'3ble to b:wk (Notes 6 and 10) 8.664,728 5,377,897 

Pay.lble iomrestricted assets: 
Long-tenn bonds payable, less C\UeOl imtaIlmerts: 

GemralRe\l!mPBonds (Notes 5 alld 10) 250.226.161 148.966.487 

Total nOlHl1lIeOlliabililies 259.837.084 155.190,940 

TotalliabOOies 276,242,612 180,878,916 

Deferred inlIow of resoun:es: 
Dei!rred d&em:es onrefiuWg of2013 bonds (Note 5) 585,743 

ConniI:nMIs and contingencies (Notes 5, 6 and 11) 

Net posriJn: 
Jml!sted in capital assets, net of rebted debt 154,075,891 249,647,943 
Res1ri:tl!cl (Notes 4 and 11) 130,130.885 28,720.477 
Unrestricted 31.995.214 22.764.629 

Total net posiion $ 316.201.990 $ 301.133.049 

See accompanying notes. 19 



Antonio B. Won Pat International Airp011 Authority_ Guam 

Managelllent' s Discussion and Analysis. continued 

E. Cost Per Enplaned Passenger & Debt Senice CO\'ernge, continued 

$40,000.000 

S30.000,000 

S20,000,000 

SI0,000.000 . 

$0 +---

S31,336,790 

FY2013 

1'\ et Revenues 

S24.445,005 

FY2012 

3.00 
Debt Senice Cove1'8ge Ratio 

2.06 
2.00 : 1.00 

1.66 

1.25 1.25 

FY2013 FY 2012 

1.53 • 125 

FY 2011 

m,045,413 

FY2011 

__ AnnU3l Debt Sen'ice Coverage ..... Debt Senice Coverage Requirement 

F. Outlook for FY 2014 

For 2014, the global industry furecast is expected to improve in terms of passenger activity and 
profitability with an increase of over 25% over 2013. Global economies are expected to impro\'e 
and bllSiness travel will rebound. 

The Authority's passenger projections of 1,711 .959 enplanements reflect a very conservative 
outlook year-over-year with a 1.0% growth in FY 2014. The devaluation of the Japan currency 
has impacted inbound visitors to Guam but Japan still represents the largest market share. 
Diversification is a key factor and this is evidenced by expanded air service by the three South 
Korean airlines with the two low cost carriers announcing double daily sen i ce in FY 2014 from 
Seoul to Guam. Additional diversification is expected from the Russia market due to visa waiver 
parole authority and scheduled charters to commence directly from two eastern Russian cities. 
The China ~isa waiver continues to be evaluated by the federal government and if parole 
authority is extended, it will open a whole new chapter for the Authority and the visitor industry. 
The Authority remains concerned that the hotel room inventory is an impediment that will stifle 
sustained passenger growth. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, continued 

F. Outlook for FY 2014, continued 

Armed with approximately $109.7 million in funding from the Series 2013 Airport Bonds and 
S27 million in federal grants or a total of S136.9 million of funds in hand, the Authority will 
phase the implementation of the 19 bond projects. Priority will be placed on the International 
Arrival Corridor with Building Seismic Upgrades and the Hold Bag Screening Relocation as 
these infrastmcture projects will materially transform the operational landscape of the terminal. 
These two projects also represent 48% of the total project costs for all 19 bond projects. The 
other bond projects will be implemented through pre1iminary engineering and design sen'ices or 
equipment procurement packages. Additional federal funds are programmed for se,'eral of the 
bond projects but may be made available within the five year performance period of the bond 
projects. 

Other capital improvement projects that the Authority expects to undertake during FY 2014 
include the demolition and environmental remediation of the former Guam Police Department 
facilities, the vacant air cargo building and other miscellaneous structures; terminal painting 
project; roofing membrane replacement; replacement and upgrade of the life a1arm and 
suppression systems; and procurement of new ARFF vehicles. Funding for these projects is 
from current federal grants and the capital improvement fund. 

As authorized by law, the Authority will refinance its 5-year subordinate loan with First 
Hawaiian Bank for the energy management program to a 10-year term. The reduced debt senice 
on the loan will be in an amount consistent with guaranteed annual energy savings with minimal 
impact on the annual revenue requirement aud the airline CPE. 

The Authority and GVB will continue to pursue an aggressive air sen'ice development program. 
The new air service development consultant will assist in developing a strategic program. 

The Authority will work closely with its airline partners to contain and reduce operational cost 
through the bond projects and to sustain the budgeted $15.61 as CPE for FY 2014 as compared 
to the FY 2013 CPE ofS17.20. By maintaining a low cost stmcnlfe and affordable airport rates 
and charges, the Authority hopes to increase airline activity that ultimately translates into 
increased operating revenue through its concessions. 

The Authority has planned to further increase its non-airline revenues as it did with the specialty 
retail concessionaire. New proposals will be solicited for advertising the food & beverage 
concessions. New and innmilltive concepts that add value may be incorporated in to the business 
program to generate higher returns to the Authority. For example, the business model for the 
food and beverage concessions will be re"iewed so as to improve passenger services and 
maximize sales through a diversification ofheahhy, branded and local choices. 

Relati,'e to the Tiyan Parkway, the Authority expects to finalize the land release request with the 
FAA and pro,ide a grant of easement to DPW for the construction of Phase L DPW is expected 
to issue a notice to proceed to the awarded contractor by April 2014. Once alternative access 
from Route 8 is prO\ided. the planned closure of Central Avenue will be initiated. 

17 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. continued 

D. Financial Operation Hiehliebts, continued 

R~·t!"'"!S, combllled 

Receipts from grants from the United States Government amounted to $17.4 million fur FY 2013 
The majority of monies will be used for airfield and aviation infrastructure improvements. 
environmental assessments and base conversion projects. 

ExpelUes 

A SU1IUD81}' of expenses for the years ended September 30. 2013, 2012. and 2011 and the amount 
and percentage of change in relation to prior year amounts is as fullows: 

2013 
2013 :!O12 2011 %lDallll.W 

% 2012 " 2011 .. (Deause) " .. 
llil .2lliB!. l!;R.mtod 2lli!Y Ai~1I11!1 .illm! b!!!~12 

0p0nOq: 
Comn.c:nW !An~ 519,.387,119 27.3~'i 518,950,053 21.3~. 511,662,·121 29A~. :1.3~. 

Pa-..mmeJ. 2I'\'"ICe5 17.463,657 245~~ 13,917,2l2 2O.r.. 13,744,204 21.1~~ 25.S" 
M • ...w. ""':uppbH 1,011,754 1.5" 1,178.487 1.8~" 125,621 1.3% ..s.S~" 

B,ddobt_. 497 176 ~ .• U054!7 --1....7% 490768 ~. -55.0''-

T ot>l opa;IIUIJ_' JI~~§ 7Q§ ~. 25 1~1.:u2 .lU% l~ 7;lJ~ ..lU"·i 93% 

Do!n=bcDud"""""; ... "2,661 001 ~. 2.& 193 ()()..$ ...,lU% 21139140 ..1ll% ·~U~. 

N ... ~ 

'"""" upeD>O 
5,093.981 8,6', 7.164,.599 10. ",. 7,.343,813 114"~ -14.~. 

B.od I....... C ... 3,9U,.317 S.S~~ o.m. 0,0% O.O~. 

Other up""" }1m ---1U'(1 WOl4 ---.ll" 489532 -lll. ·91.1', 

T ... I ... __ ._, IOO4!773 .Jtl~. 7,s97.613 ..l!J." 783l4lS ..ill'- 32.~. 

Tot>lup ..... $711)2410 ~. $669.118J6 ~" .. 56] 'M .. " ~. 63% 

Tcalfidl time~ ... 190 192 199 

14 



Antonio B. Won Pat IntemationalAiIport Authority. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. continued 

E. Cost Per Enplaned Passenger ~\l: Debt Senice Conrage 

Cost Per Ellpialled Passl!1lger 

A summary of the cost per enplaned passenger for the years ended September 30. 2013, 2012 
and 2011, and tbe amount and percentage of change in relation to prior year amounts is as 
follows: 

Airport Rfnaurs 
Signatory Airline rental. & roe. 
Re\'eDUes from sources other thaD 

Signatory Airline rentals and foes 
Passenger F.cility a..rge revenue 
Opentiug !lf3Il1s from U.S. Govenunent 

Airport Re, .. nues 

Signato!}' Airline enplaned possongers 
Sil!Jlalol}" Airhne cost per enplaned 

passenger 

Debt St!n';u C o,'erage 

2013 

Acnnl 

S29,19 J,84~ 

33.483,811 
6,559.691 

946 273 

$701876'0 

1,693,962 

517.24 

!.; of 
Totals 

.n .6 4}~ 

-17.1% 
9.3 !.~ 

...!.1...!;' 

llIlLII" ,. 

'f, 
Chonge 

8.1-(, 

2.5 ~~ 

2012 2011 
As Restated As Re.tated 

-fa of ~~ of 
AmIIl 19!1h AcntaJ Totals 

$26,332581 4l9~~ 524.016,783 .n6~~ 

27,208,919 45J~, 26,157,787 46..t~~ 
6,096248 10.2% 5576,838 9.9~~ 

408686 o_ ~,~ 581238 J.J~~ 

$60046434 ~'Y. 556Hl 146 ~'f, 

•• •• 
~ 

U 66J56 10.~~ 1.416.873 

516.81 .o .s~~ $16.95 

Under the Bond Indentures for the issuance of the 2013 and 2003 General Revenue Bonds. the 
Authority is required to maintain minimum debt service coverage of 1.25 in relation to net 
revenues versus annual debt service. A summary of the annual debt coverage for the years ended 
September 30, 2013,2012 and 2011 is as follows: 

1013 ~'i 
Increase 

2012 1011 (Decrease) 
2013 As Restated As Restated from 2012 

Airport Re, .. nues $70,187,620 $60,046,434 556,333,346 16_9~' 

Less : Operatioo oM Maintenance E.'J'OIl"S (38850830) (35701.:122) (34335J3ID 8 .~~ 

Net Re,..,.,.. 531,336,790 24,344.912 21,998,010 28 .7'~ 
Plus: Other A,-ai!able Monies 4P8486 4317.180 ~ ~!!Hl!!! OJ~~ 

Net Re,unes oM OIhB A,"Iibble Monie. S~~ ~~~ 'Z~ $'8~" ~') $'610' !l20 24.4~i 

Rate C .... nant 

Net Re\-.nnes and OIhB A,-ailable Monie. $ 35,665,276 $ 28,662,292 $26,302,490 24.4% 
Total Annnal Debt Smice S 17.313,944 S 17,269,519 $17.217.919 0.3~. 
Annual Debt Service CO\-erage 2.06 1.66 1.53 24.1% 
Debt Slenice co\'erage requirement 1.25 1.25 1.25 

[ 

[ 

[ 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intel11ational Airport Authority. Guam 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. continued 

D. Financial Op@ration Highlights, rontinll@d 

$6,559,691 
7.56'l6 

Total Revenues Fiscal YeaI' 2013 

$17,":><J"o~,, _ __ --:;r' 
20.11'l6 

3.42% 

$28,250,994 
32.55'l6 

$31,556,083 
36.36'l6 

. AERO . NON-_<\ERO DINlEREST INCOl\1E • PASSENGER FACILI1Y CHARGE • FEDERAL GRAl'ITS 

Total Ope1'8ting Revenues Fiscal YeaI' 2013 

. AERONAUTICAL a NON-AERONAUTICAL 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Statements of Cash Flows. continued 

Yellr ended Sep~ 30. 
2012 

2013 Asresta~d 

RecoDciliatioD onoss from oper:llion~ and olber expt'Dses 
10 nel cash prodded by operating aclil'ities: 

iDs. iom opemlKllIS S( 1.287,626 ) S( 6,866,300 ) 
Noo-rtcIIIriJg and other eJq>eDSeS, net ( 3.950.792 ) ( 433,010 ) 

( 5,238,418 ) ( 7,299,310 ) 

Adjus_1O recoId. bss rom opemtims and other 
expt1lSe5. net 10 net cash pro\'iIed by operatq actr.itrs: 
~eciatioo and aomtizati;m 22,668.001 24.193.004 
Bad debt exptme 497,176 1,105,457 
(ID=ase) decrease in assets: 

AccotdS =er.'able ( 2,438.668 ) ( 1,763,434 ) 
Jm-.ololy and other ( 162,588 ) 16,644 
AccOUdS recer.'able liom_ ( 248,400 ) ( 259,200 ) 

Increase (decrease) in iabKties: 
AccoUdS payable 210,255 1,013,698 
Other c:urrm liabiliies 2,110,025 ( 269.538 ) 
$early deposis ( 265,768 ) 145,514 
A1nsa11e1l\1: 107.635 5.204 
Accrued sid: lea\1: 38.303 ( 11.068 ) 

Total adj1lslTTl'nts 22,515,971 24,176,281 

Net cash provided by operalilg acli\'iies S 17,277,553 S 16,876,971 

Stltl accompanying nottJS. 22 



Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies 

OrganiZ:ltion 

The Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authonty, Guam. (the Authority), was created by 
Public Law 13-57 (as amended) as a component unit of the Government of Guam to own and 
operate the fucilities of the Guam International Air Tenninal. located at Tiyan, Guam It is 
charged with the acquisition. construction, operation and maintenance of the ailport and related 
facilities for civil avmtion on Guam The Authority supports its operations through landing fees 
and charges for the use of its facilities and through rentals under concessionaire agreements. 

Basis of Accounting 

The Authority utilizes the flow of economic resources measurement focus . Its financial 
statements are prepared In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States as applied to governmental units using the accrual basis of accounting. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. GASB Statement No. 
20. Accoullting alld Fillancial Repol'tingjor ProprietOl), Funds alld Other GOl'el71mental Entities 
rhat Use ProplietOl), FUlld Accounting requires that proprietary activities apply all applicable 
GASB pronouncements as well as Statements and Interpretations issued by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (F ASB). Accounting Principle Board Opinions and Accounting 
Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with a 
GASB pronouncement. 

C'let Position 

Net position represents the residual of all other elements presented in the statement net of 
position. It is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources, and (b) 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is presented in three components: net 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted and unrestricted. 

Net invested in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets. net of 
accumulated deprecmtion. reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, notes or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition. construction, or improvement of those assets. 
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debts are also included in this 
component of net position. 

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricted 
assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the recognition of a liability or 
if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. 
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Antonio B, Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

1. O"gauization and Summa.~· of Accounting Polici@s, continu@d 

The unrestricted component of ~t position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities. and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination 
of ~t invested in capital assets oe the restricted component of ~t position. 

Cash 

For the pwpose of the statements of cash flows, cash is defined as cash on hand and in banks. 
Cash on hand and in banks include passenger fucility charge cash and customs fees, cash. 

Accounts receivable are primarily due from airlines utilizing the Authority' s airport terminal 
facilities and various business establishments located in Guam. The Authority ~rforms pmodic 
credit evaluations of its customers. and generally does not require collateral Receivables are 
considered past due when payment is not received within 90 days from the date of billing. As of 
September 30, 2013 and 2012, receivables that are more than ninety days past due totaled 
approximately $2,618.000 and 53,588,000, respectively. The Authority accrues finance charges 
on past due recen-ables. Recei~-ables are stated ~t of estimated allowances for doubtful 
accounts. 

The allowance foe doubtful accounts is stated at an amount which manag~ent believes will be 
adequate to absorb possible losses on accounts recei,-able that may become uncollectible based 
on evaluations of the collectability of these accounts and prioe collection expmence. The 
allowance is established throngh a provision foe bad debts charged to expense. 

Inventory is eecoeded at the lower of cost (using first-in. ficst-out method) oe market ,-alue. 

Investments and related investment earnings are recorded at mir ~-alue . Fair value is the amount 
at which a financial instru=nt could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing 
parties, other than in a forced oe liquidation sale and are primarily determined based on quoted 
market ,-alues. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intemational AiIpOlt Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, continued 

Capital Assets and Depreciation and Amot"tization 

Capital assets. whether p\l1'chased or constructed. are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

Depreciation of airport facilities and amortization of improvements has been computed by the 
straight-line method using estimated useful lives of 5 to 35 years for buildings and 3 to 10 years 
for equipment. 

The Authority capitalizes buildings, land impro,'ements and equipment that have a cost of 
$5.000 or more and an estimated usefhl life of at least three years. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or do not materially extend the 
Ii .... es of the assets are not capitalized. 

The costs of issuing bonds to finance construction of airport facilities have been capitalized and 
are being amonized on a weighted-a .... erage basis over the lives of the bonds outstanding. D\I1'ing 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the Authority adopted Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 65, Items Previously Repo,·ted as Assets and Liabilities. (GASB 
Statement No. 65). As described in Note I - Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements. 
the implementation of this new statement required the restatement of the Authority' s financial 
statements at October I . 2011. The effect of the restatement was the elimination of the bond 
issue costs and the related amonization expense, which were recorded in the statement of net 
position and the statement of revenues. expenses. and changes in net position, respectively. 

Capitalization of Interest 

The Authority charges to construction-in-progress interest incU1'red dU1'ing the period of 
construction. Interest is capitalized in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board 
Accounting Standards Codification No. 835-20 Capitali=ation of IlIte,'est for all projects which 
are not constructed with the proceeds of tax exempt bonds or grant funds. Interest capitalization 
ceases when constructed facilities are placed in service. 

A,igation Easements 

Avigation easements are property rights acquired by the Authority whenever land use around the 
Guam International Air Terminal needs to be controlled or when air rights are required. The 
Authority capitalizes the cost inC\l1'red for air rights and is amortized over 15 years using the 
straight -line method. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policips, contiuupd 

Impairmpnt of Long-lind Assets 

Long-li\'ed assets to be held and used or disposed of by the Authority are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an 
asset may be reco~-erable. 

Compensated Ahsences 

In accordance with Public Law 27-005 and Public Law 28-068. employees vacation rates are 
credited at either 104. 156 or 208 hours per year, dq>ending upon their length of service as 
follows: 

l. One-half day (4 hours) for each full hi-weekly pay period in the case of employees with 
less than five (5) years of service. 

2. Thee-fourths day (6 hours) for each full bi-weekly pay period in the case of employees 
with more than five (5) years of service but less than fifteen (15) years of service. 

3. One (1) day (8 hours) for each full bi-weekly pay period in the case of employees with 
more than fifteen (15) years of sen ice. 

The statutes reduce the maximum accumulation of such vacation credits from 480 to 320 hours. 
Public Law 27-106 amended subsection (c) of4 Guam Code Annotated § 4109. Employees who 
have accumulated annual leave in excess of320 hours as of February 28. 2003, may carry over 
their excess and shall use the excess amount of leave prior to retirement or termination from 
service. Any unused leave over the excess shall be lost. 

Accrued annual leave up to 320 hours is converted to pay upon termioation of employment. 
Amounts to be paid during the next fiscal year are reported as current. 

Bond Premium and Discount 

Bond premium and discount are amortized on a weighted-average basis over the life of the bond 
issues. Bonds payable are reported net of bond premium and discount. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, continued 

Operating and Xon-Opel":tting Rennues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result directly from the operation and maintenance of 
the Guam International Air T erminnl. Non·operating revennes and expenses result from capital 
and financing activities, costs and related recoveries from natural disasters, Passenger Facility 
Charges and certain other non-recurring income and expenses. 

Revennes are recognized when earned or when services are rendered. Expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incurred. regardless of the timing of related cash flows . 

Passenger Facility Charges 

Passenger Facility Charges (pFC) generate income to be expended by the Authority fur eligible 
projects and the payment of debt service on the General Revenue Bonds as determined by 
applicable federal legislation. PFC IDcome is recorded as non-operating income in the 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

Emironmental Costs 

Liabilities for future remediation and monitoring costs are recorded when environmental 
assessments and/or remedial and monitoring efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably 
estimated. These liabilities are not reduced by possible recoveries from third parties. and 
projected cash expenditures are not discounted. 

Estimat<'s 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenne and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Risk Manag<'ment 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss; theft of; damage to, and destruction of assets; 
operation and environmental liability; errors and omissions: employee injuries and illnesses: 
natural disasters and employee health, dental and accident benefits. Commercial insurance 
coverage is provided fur claints arising from most of these matters. The Authority has procured 
catastrophic insurance, as discussed in Note I L 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International AiIport Authority, Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

1. Ol'&allization and Summal1' of Accounting PaUci • ., continu.d 

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Repol1ing of DefelTed Ourj1ows of 
Resources. Daffln'ed Inflows of Resources and Net Position. This Statement provides financial 
reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources. Deferred 
outflows is defined as the consumption of net as~ts by the gO''el'II1llent that is applicable to a 
future reporting period and deferred inflows is defined as the acquisition of net assets by the 
government that is applicable to a future reporting period. GASB Statement No. 63 also amends 
the net asset reporting requirement by incorporating deferred outtIows of resources and deferred 
inflow of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and 
by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The provisions of this Statement 
are effected for financial statement fur the periods beginning after December 15. 2011. The 
Authority' s adoption ofGASB 63 resuhed in a change in the presentation of the statement of net 
assets to what is now referred to as the statement of net position and the term ~net as~ts" was 
changed to "net position" throughout the financial statements. 

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65. Items Previollsly Reported as Assets and 
Liobilities (GASB No. 65). This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting 
standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources 
certain items that were pre,';ously reported as as~ts and liabilities and recognizes as outflows of 
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were pre\';ously reported as assets and 
liabilities. The pro\-isions of this Statement will improve ftnancial reporting by clarifying the 
appropriate u~ of the ftnancial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. 

The implementation of GASB No. 65, which was adopted early by the Authority. required 
restatement of the Authority's ftnancial statements as of October I . 2011. The effect of the 
restatement was the e1imination of the deferred bond issuance costs of $4,857.336 and the 
elimination of the amortization expense ofS763,515, which were recorded in the 2012 statement 
of net position and statement of revenues, expenses. and changes in net position, respectively. 

As Pre\';ously 
Rqx>rted Adjustment Restated 

For the ~ar ended September 30, 2012 
Depreciation and amortization $24.956,5 19 $( 763.515) $24,193.004 

As ofSeplember 30, 2012 
Deferred bond issue cost $ 4,857,336 $(4,857,336) $ 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Aitport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

1. Ol'ganization and Summa,'), of Accounting Policios, continued 

Upcoming Accounting Pl'onouncement 

In March 2012. GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Cal7'ectians - 2012, an amendment oj 
GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62. This Statement amends Statement No. 10. Accounting and 
Financial ReportingJor Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by removing the provision 
that limits fund·based reporting of an entity's risk financing activities to the general fund and the 
internal service fund type. This Statement also amends Statement 62 by modifying the specific 
guidance on accounting for (I) operating lease payments that vary from a straightline basis. (2) 
the difference between the initial investment (purchase price) and the principal amount of a 
purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are sold 
when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a current (nonnal) servicing fee rate. 
The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15 , 2012. 

In June 2012. GASB issued Statement No. 67. Financial Reporting Jor Pension Plans, an 
amendment oj GASB Statement No. 25, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013. This 
Statement establishes financial reporting standards for state and local governmental pension 
plans, defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution pension plans, that are 
administered through trusts or equi~'1Ilent arrangements that meet certain criteria. 

In June 201 2, GASB issued Statement No. 68. Accounting and Financial Reporting Jar 
Pensions, an amendment oj GASB Statmnent No. 2 7, effective for periods beginning after June 
15. 2014. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to 
pensions for governments whose employees are provided with pensions through pension plaus 
that are covered by the scope of this Statement, as well as for nonemployer governments that 
have a legal obligation to contribute to those plans. Upon implementation of GASB 68. the 
Authority estimates that its net position and accrued unfunded liability to retirement fund would 
decrease and increase, respectively. by approximately $6 million at October I . 2013. 

In January 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 69, GOl'enmrenf CombinatiollS and Disposals oj 
Gol'el71mmlt Operations, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2013 . This 
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government 
combinations and disposals of government operations. In addition. this Statement provides 
specific accounting and fmancial reporting guidance for combinations in the go~'emmental 

environment and also improves the decision usefulness of financial reporting by requiring that 
disclosures be made by governments about combination arrangements in which they engage and 
for disposals of government operations. 

In April 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting Jor 
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting 
and financial reporting by state and local gO;'el'lllDents that extend and receive nonexchange 
financial guarantees. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 
periods beginJling after June 15. 2013. 

29 



Antonio B. Won Pat International AiIPOIt Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

1. 01'll:anization and Summary of Accounting Policies, continued 

Upcominli: Accounting Prononncements, continued 

In Nov~mber 2013, GASB iss~d Statement No. 71, Pellsion Tl'Onsitioll for Conl7'ibutiol/s Made 
Subsequel/t to MeasurBment Date, an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 68. The provisions of 
this Statement should be applied simultaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement No, 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting fa/' Pel/siol/s. The objectn'e of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by addressing an issue in Statement No, 68 concerning 
transition provisions related to certain pension contributions made to defined benefit pension 
plans prior to implementation of that Statement by employers and nonemployer contributing 
entities. 

The Authority is currently evaluating the effects the abm;e proDOuncements might have on its 
financial statm>ents. 

2. Subsequent Ennts 

The Authority has evaluated subseq~nt events through January 30, 2014, which is also the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 

3. Concutrations of Credit Risk and ~Iajor Customers 

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Authority to concentrations of credit risk 
consist principally of cash deposits and accounts receivable, 

The Authority maintains its cash in bank accounts, which at times may exceed federal depository 
insurance limits. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, $250,000 of the Authority' s deposits in each 
bank is covered by federal depository insurance. with the remainder being uninsured and 
uncollateratized, 

A primary concessionaire accounted for 12% and 15%. respectively, of total operating re~'enues 
for each of the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, Receivables from the primary 
concessionaire totaled $848,086 and $1 ,026,490 at September 30. 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

For the years ended September 30.2013 and 2012. approximately 27% and 28%, respectively. of 
the Authority's total operating revenues., including passenger mcility charge income, were 
dern'ed from one airline customer, At September 30, 2013 and 2012. the receivable from this 
airline customer totaled $2,030,362 and $1 ,821,986, respectively. 

Concentration of credit risk with respect to the remaining accounts receivable which are due 
primarily from other various airlines. concessionaires and tour operators is limited due to the 
large number of customers comprising the Authority' s customer base. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International AiIpOit Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

4. Airport Facilities 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30. 20 13 i~ as fo1lows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance 

October I, and and September 30, 
2012 Additions Deletions 2013 

Capital assets depreciated: 
Terminal building $342,344.415 $ 37.962 $154,962 $342.537.339 
Other buildings 85,113,790 102.132 370.187 85,586,109 
Aldie Id area 82,246.467 236.184 82,482,651 
Apron area 40,983,694 40,983,694 
Terminal area 24.748,708 24,748,708 
Support fitcilities 8712 188 21309 133075 8866572 

Total capital assets 
depreciated 584,149,262 161,403 894,408 585.205,073 

Less accumulated 
depreciation (330.415.314) (21.831.410) (352.246.724) 

Net capital assets 
depreciated 253.733.948 (21.670.00I) 894.408 232.958.349 

Capital assets not depreciated: 
Land 57,461.373 57,461,373 
Construction-in-progress ~7 768 332 27556082 (894408) 114430006 

Total capital assets 
not depreciated 14~.229 705 27556082 (894408) 171891379 

$328263653 $ 588601'; $ $40:1 842 128 

The Authority acquired avigation easements from surroundutg residential homeowners in 
exchange for the cost of installing residential sound insulation. Construction-in-progress at 
September 30, 2013 and 2012 included $1,799.823 and $696,963, respectively, of costs 
associated with the residential sound insulation program. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the 
Authority's avigation easements (net of amortization) amounted to $10,966,295 and 
$11,975,643, respectively, and is shown as avigation easements in the accompanying statements 
of net position. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International AiIport AutllOl'ity. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

7. Innstm"nts and Cash mth Tru~I"..s, continufd 

At September 30.2013. the Authority's investments were as follows: 

Investment Maturities (In Years) 

Standard & 
Poor'SlMoody's 

Crtdit 

RruiI!i t.ss than 1 1J2.2 ~ Greater than 10 I2laI. 

US treastA'}' notes Aaa-mf S S2,003,154 S - 5 - 5 2,003,154 

US government agencies: 
Ftd=I~Loan 

Moogage C<Xp<I'3lion ./WiA..4...1J,. 349,963 751,202 201 ,186 1,302,351 
Federal Naliooal Moogage 

Association kla/AAA 574,775 28,466 163,914 767,155 

Corporate notes: 
CDC Funding Corporation kl31A"- 9,549,194 9,549,194 
Othcr kla/AAA 36,683 36,683 
Othcr Aa/AA 214,835 47.991 262,826 
Othcr A2 5,753 5,753 
Othcr AlIAA+ 49,"0 49,2..'JO 
Othcr A 504,190 176,330 680,520 
Othcr BA..<UlA- 125,783 125,783 
Othcr BA.A:!IBBB 29,849 29,849 
Othcr R4...IJ,.IIBBB+ 10,322 10,322 
Othcr Baa/BBB 10,897 219,452 88,252 10,170 328.771 
Othcr BI!B+ 248,525 248,525 
Othcr Not ",tm 184,775 184.775 

Money Marl<et Funds: 
USBank,NA Aa2/ki 9.682,926 9.682.926 
Ciliballk, NA AliA 4,068 4,068 
Bank of Guam BBB 132,346,537 132,346.537 
Othcr Not ",tm 878.741 878.741 

$143227359 51 304 29! 5542.225 S9723 278 SI58.497.153 

Cash 4,718 
Acaurd iIJlcrest 513.943 

SJ ~2 iU ~ 8]:1 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intelllational AiJ:POlt Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

7. Innstment.s and Ca.sh with Trustees, continued 

At September 30,2012, the Authority's investments were as follows: 

St3lld3rd & 
Pooc's;1>100dy's 

Credit 

Investment Maturities <In Years) 

Rating Less than I 6to 10 Greaterthau 10 

us treasury notes Aaa·mf S S1246,250 S s 
us government agencies: 

Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation AaalAAA 399,868 210,562 

Federal National Mortgage 
Association Aa.Lv.A 824.533 1,688,129 

Corporate notes: 
CDC Fuodiug Cmpaation AaI/AA+lAAA - 18,045,950 
Other AaalAAA 17,884 
Other AalAA 68,341 282,706 
Other A 233,738 714,808 
Other BaalBBB 118,056 133,512 
Other Not rated 15.430 

Money Market FlIIlds: 
Federated Investments ltAA 4,102,595 
USBaok,NA Al!.~ 13,430.207 
Cin'bank, NA Baa2 3,831 ,899 
Bank of Guam BBB 6,868,118 
Other Not rated 869.750 

S 30 76' 53? S4m851 $ SI8 04'i 9'iO 

Cash 
Accrued interest 

S 1,246,250 

610.430 

2,512.662 

18,045,950 
17,884 

351,047 
1.008,546 

251 ,568 
15,430 

4,102.595 
13,430.207 
3.831,899 
6,868,118 

869.150 

$53,162,336 

4,718 
35719 

S53,202,773 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International AiIpolt Authority. Guam 

Notes to FiIllIncial Statements, continued 

7. Innstments and Cash with Trustees, continued 

Investments are stated at fair market 'Ialue. The amortized cost and fair value of investments at 
September 30. 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows: 

2013 2012 
Gross Gross 

AmortizM un=liztd Fair Amortiztd lIIlrealiud Fair 
Cost ga;ns \'alue Cost pins \'3h~ 

Cash v.~th trustees S 4,718 5- 5 4,718 5 4,718 $ s 4,718 
Money IIl3rketi 

trustfimds 142,054,510 142,054,510 25,714,887 25,714,887 

18,045,950 

8,187,396 

In\'eSlmc!t 
agrecnenlS 10,038,662 10,038,662 18,045,950 

Sbon-tmn 
investmenJs 4,879,510 31,267 4,91O,n7 8,120,110 67,286 

US. Trraswy 
notes IJ1S2 IM8 ~ lQQ7147 I,m (112 37207 

$15S.959 448 5~ 5159015814 553 Q28 28Q 5104.493 

),?49822 

$53202,773 

GASB Statement No. 3 p-reviously required government entities to present im;estment risks in 
terms of whether the investments fell into the following categories: 

Category 1 

Category 2 

Category 3 

Investments that are insured or registered. or securities held by the 
Authority or its agent in the Authority's name; 

Investments that are uninsured and unregistered for which securities are 
held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the Authority's 
name; or 

Investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by 
the counterparty' s trust department or agent but not in the Authority's 
name. 

As of September 30, 2013 and 2012. all investments were classified as Category 2 investments. 

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and inVl3slment Risk DiscToslI/'es (an amendment of GASB 
Statement No.3), amended GASB Statement No. 3 to, in effect, eliminate disclosure for deposits 
and investments falling into categories 1 and 2 and p-rovide for disclosure requirements 
addressing other common risks of investments such as credit risk. interest rate risk, concentration 
of credit risk, and foreign currency risk. GASB Statement No. 40 did retain and expand the 
element of custodial risk in GASB Statement No. 3. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intelllational Auport AutilOlity, Guam 

Notes to FU18ncial Statements. continued 

7. Im'estments and Cash with Trustees, continued 

Credit risk fur investments is the risk that an issuer or other countetparty to an investment will 
not fulfill its obligations. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will ad" ersely affect the fair value of 
debt instruments. In compliance with the bond indenture, the Authority minimized the interest 
rate risk. by limiting maturity of Investments. A majority of the Authority's investment 
securities have maturities of 5 years or less . This reduces the impact of interest rate movements 
seen with longer maturity investments. 

Concentration of credit risk for investments is the risk of loss attnbuted to the magnitude of an 
entity's investment in a single issuer. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure by issuer and 
amount of investments in anyone issuer that represents five percent (5%) or more of total 
investments for the Authority. In compliance with the bond indenture, the Authority minimized 
credit risk losses by linutmg investments to the safest types of securities. Bank of Hawaii 
Investment Services Group. Bank of Guam. ClIibank N.A. and Coast 360 Federal Credit Union 
manage the Federal Fund accounts investing in U.S. Treasury Securities, U .S. Government 
Agencies, Domestic Corporate Bonds. Money Market Funds and Certificate of Deposits insured 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The U.S. Treasury Securities are low risk 
investments as they are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government. While 
U .S. Government Agencies are not guaranteed, they are backed by the U.S. government and are 
recognized as low risk investments as well. In addition. certain funds held with the Bank of 
Guam-Trustee are invested in Government Obligations Funds through Federated Investments. 
Funds with co-trustee, U.S. Bank., are invested in First American Treasury Obligations Fund. All 
investment securities are within the requirement of the 2013 and 2003 bond indentures. 

Custodial credit risk fur investments is the risk that in the everll of the failure of the counterparty 
to the transaction. the Authority will not be able to recover the value of investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside parry. Based on negotiated trust and custody 
contracts. all of these investments were held in the Authonty' s name by the Authonty's custodial 
financial institutions at September 30, 2013 and 2012. 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates 'WOi1J adversely affect the 
fitir value of an investment. 

[ 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

6. Long-T.rm Loan Payabl. to Bank 

Long-T= loan payable To bank aT SepTember 30. 2013 and 2012 consisTM oflbe following: 

FirsT Hawaiian Bank. 3.75% interesT raTe fixed 
for 5 years. monthly paymmT of interesT only 
shall be made for The firsT year of Ibe loan 
STarling on July 27. 2012: Ibereafter, monTbly 
payments of principal and inTereST in The 
amounT of S309.687 STarTing on February 24, 
2014. which will amortize the loan over a 
period of 41 months. The principal balance 
and aU accrued interest will be due and payable 
on July 27. 2017. The loan is secured by a 
Security Agreement and n UCC-l Financing 
Agreement. The loan is subject to U.S. 
DeparTment of Agricuhure' s (USDA) written 
commitment to the bank to guaranty no Jess 
!ban 90% of the 1080 to the Authority 

Less cutTent installment 

SI0.928,228 

2.263 .500 

S 8664 728 

S5,594.897 

2 17.000 

$5 377.897 

On June 27, 2012. the Authority entered a loan agreement wilb First Hawaiian Bank (FHB) to 
finance Ibe Aulbority' s energy efficient upgrades. The loan amount is for $11.9 million. The 
di~bursement of the loan proceeds will be based on the payment of the costs incurTed for work 
actually done and improvements actually installed by a contractor under the performance 
contract. The loan will be disbursed directly to Ibe contractor by FHB upon Ibe Aulbority' s 
approval During the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. Ibe amount of loan disbursed 
by FHB directly to the contractor totaled SI0.928,228 and 55.594,897, respectively. and is 
recorded as part of capital assels and current portion and 1008-1= loan payable in the 
accompanying statements of net position. The undisbursed portion oflhe loan at September 30, 
2013 and 2012 totals $971.772 and $6.305,103, respectively. The 511.9 million is subject to 
USDA's Loan Note Guarantee: however, the Loan Note Guarantee for the loan will not be 
e~cuted by USDA until all construction has been complelM, equipment has been purchased and 
inslalled, and Ibe mcility is certified as operatioual by Ibe appropriate official, which is expected 
to be in January 2014. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, Ibe loan was supported by a 
Conditional Commitment for Guarantee bylbe USDA. 

On January 25. 2014. the loan agreement and note were amended by Commercial Loan 
Modification Agreement, wherein the amended interest rate is at 5.75% per annum until the 
amended note is paid in full. Beginning on February 24, 2014 and continuing Tbereafter during 
the 1= of the amended loan agreement, principal and interest shall be paid in monTbly 
installments of 5130.625 over a period of 10 years from January 25, 2014 to January 24. 2024. 
The amended maturity date oflhe loan is January 24, 2024. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Autholity. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

6. Long-Term Loan Payable to Bank, continued 

This loan is also secured by a Secw'ity Agreement and UCC-I Fiaaacing Statement which 
identify sums in the Subordinate Secw'ities Fund and Capital Improvement Fund as collateral fur 
the loan. Both funds are allocated revenues pursuant to Section 5.02 of the Bond Indenture. 
Obligations of the Authority payable from the afurementioned funds are subordinate to the 
pledge and lien of airport re\·enues to secure payment of the Authority's bonds. 

As part of the loan conditions, the Authority shall maintain a minimum debt ser\-ice ratio of 1.25 
to I. 

Future maturities of the FHB long·term loan payable are as fullow: 

Year ending September 30 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

7. Inl'estments and Cash llith Trustees 

S 2.263.500 
3,450.000 
3.582.000 
1.632.728 

$10.9'82?8 

The afurementloned 2013 and 2003 bond indentures require the estab1ishment of special funds 
and accounts to be held and administered by the Authority's trustees fur the accounting oftbe 
bond proceeds. At September 30. 2013 and 2012. investments and cash held by the trust~s. in 
trust fur the Authority, in these funds and accounls are as follows : 

2!ill lQ!2 

Operations and Maintenance Reserve Fund S 10.097,454 $ 9,378.260 
Federal Grant Funds 6.491.857 6,414.589 
Risk and Loss Management Reser\'e Fund 4,849.745 3.838.135 
General Revenue Fund 4,520.199 225,457 
Rebate Fund 1,399.734 
Capital Improvement Fund 682,262 400.038 
Cost of Issuance 290,014 
Operations and Maintenance Fund 135 024 4682 

Total Unrestricted 28.466.289 20,261,161 

Cash with Trust~s 4,718 4.718 
Construction Fund 109,864,890 
Bond Reserve Funds 19.678.484 18,506,524 
Renewal and Replacement Fund 1,000,249 1,000.146 
Debt Service Funds 1.184 13,430.224 

Total Restricted 130 549 ~2:! ,32,211 !i12 

$159,015,814 $5l.2!!2 77~ 

[ 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

5. Long-Term Rennue Bonds Payable, continued 

Future bond principal and mandatory sinking fund installments payable by the Authority to the 
bond trustees are as fullows : 

Year ending Total 
Septmbc:r 30 Principal Intrust MtSro; ce 

2014 $ 5 7,572,198 $ 7,572,198 
2015 9,845,000 13,550,775 23,395,775 
2016 10,465,000 13,193,800 23,658,800 
2017 10,890,000 12,712.250 23,602,250 
2018 11,430,000 12,154,250 23,584,250 

2019 through 2023 66,310,000 51,322,776 117,632,776 
2024 through 2044 138 395.000 98788 119 237 183 119 

5~:17.m.Qoo $~Q9 294 I!!~ ~5M,9168 

General R(fVenlle Bonds, Series 2013 

On September 12, 2013, the Authority issued $247,335,000 General Revenue Bonds 
(collectively, the "2013 Bonds') as fullows: 

• 2013 Series A (Non-AM1) 
• 2013 Series B (Non-AM1) 
• 2013 Series C (AM1) 

$ 14.620,000 
33,675,000 

199.040.000 

$247335000 

The 2013 Bonds were obtained fur the fullowing: 

a. current refunding of all of the Authority's outstanding 2003 Bonds; 
b. financing additions, extensions and improvements to the AiIport; 
c. funding the 2013 Bond Reserve Account; and 
d. paying expenses incurred in connection with the issuance ofthe 2013 Bonds. 

The aggregate purchase price is 5247,540,014 (the purchase price), representing the principal 
amount of the 2013 Bonds, plus a net original issue premium of $2,891,161 and less an 
underwriters' discount and insurance of 52,686,147. Intrust on the 2013 Bonds will be payable 
on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing on April 1, 2014. 

The 2013 Bonds bear interest at a rate from 3% to 6% and mature on October I , 2023 for the 
2013 Series A (Non.AM1) and on October 1,2043 fur the 2013 Series B (Non-AM1) and 2013 
Series C (AMT). 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intemational Ail'Polt Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

5. Long.Term Rennue Bonds Payable, continued 

General R(II.·enuo Bonds. Series 2013. cOl/til/ued 

The 2013 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity date. 

The refunding resulted in a credit difference on refunding of $3,008.461 representing the 
difference between the reacquisit ion price and carrying amount of the 2003 bonds. The 
Authority netted the S2.422,781 unamorti2:ed difference from prior refunding (as descrIbed in the 
paragraphs below) against the $3,008.461 difference in current refunding, and the resulting net 
credit of $585,743 is presented as a deferred inflow of resources in the accompanying 2013 
statement of ne! position. The $585.743 is to be deferred and amorti2:ed over the ten year 
original amorti2:ation period remaining from the 2003 bonds. 

General R",'el1ue Bonds. Series 2003 

On September 30. 2003. the Authority issued $216.250.000 in Series 2003 General Revenue 
Bonds to retire $216,185,000 of outstanding 1993 Series bonds. The net proceeds of 
$192,699,547 (after payment of$1l ,007,710 in underwriting fees, insurance. and other issuance 
cost) plus an additional $30,969.034 of 1993 Series fund monies were used to purchase U.S. 
government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable mISt with an escrow 
agent to prm,;de for the refunding of the 1993 bonds on October 31 . 2003. 

The refunding resulted in a difference on refunding of S7.937,352 representing the difference 
between the reacquisition price and carrying amount of the 1993 bonds. The refunding 
difference was deferred and is being amorti2:ed over the remaining life of the 1993 bonds. As of 
September 30, 2012, the unamortized balance of the refunding difference totals $2,860,031 and 
is recorded as a deferred outflow of resources in the accompanying 201 2 statement of net 
position. For the years ended September 30. 2013 and 2012, the amortization expense totaling 
$437.313 and $466,155, respecti~·e1y. are included as a component of other expenses, net in the 
accompanying statements of re\-enues, expenses and changes in net position. 

As discussed in the preceding paragraphs. the 2003 outstanding bonds were refunded on 
September 12. 2013 by issuance of the 2013 General Revenue Bonds. 

The General Revenue Bonds, including interest, are payable from and are secured by a pledge of 
revenues UDder the indenture. The bonds are collatera1i2:ed by a lien upon and pledge of 
re\'enues to be received by the Authority, the trustees and the depository. The Authority also 
engaged the Bond Issuer to secure the financial guaranty insurance policy, guaranteeing the 
schedule payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due. Neither the payment of 
the principal on the bonds, nor any interest thereon. is a debt. liability or obligation of the 
Go~entof~ 

The bond indentures include certain debt sen; ce and reserve requirements including the 
requirement that net revenues as defined in the bond indentures phis other a~'8i1able monies be 
equal to at least 125% of the annual debt service. 

[ 

I 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

4. Airport Facilities, continue.1 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30.2012 is as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance TttUlSfers Transfers Balance 

October I. and and September 30. 
2011 Additions Deletions 2012 

Capital assets depreciated: 
Terminal building $341,133 .294 $ 42.288 5 1,168.833 $342.344.415 
Other buildings 84,814,026 93.445 206,319 85,113,790 
Airfield area 81 ,786.724 19.300 440,443 82.246,467 
Apron area 40,983,694 40,983 .694 
Terminal area 24.748.708 24,748,708 
Support facilities 8 !!76 481 J~ 1QI S 712 188 

Total capital assets 
depreciated 582,142.933 190,734 1,815,595 584,149,262 

Less accumn1ated 
depreciation Q07.23l.657) (23,183.65Z) (330.415.314) 

Net capital assets 
depreciated 214.211 27!! (22222223) Imm ')~3.m.248 

Capital assets not depreciated: 
Land 57,461,373 57,461,373 
Construction-in-progress 7;2 QQ8 844 Hi ~75 Q83 (I m ~2~) 877128 J)2 

Total capital assets 
not depreciated 130.470.217 16,575,083 ( 1,815.595) 145.229.705 

$4Q5 3§1 49~ 5( ~ ~17 §40) $ $32§ 2~~ ~~J 

On September 30, 2005, !be Authority entered into a quitclaim deed with the Government nf 
Guam. wherein the Government of Guam transferred a parcel of land with an appraised value of 
52,530,000 to the Authority. As more fully discussed in Note 11, the deed was entered into in 
response to a request by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) that the Authority seek 
reimbursement ofS564,702 in unresolved federal program questioned costs as of September 30, 
2004. The S2.530,OOO is included as a component of capital assets in the accompanying 
statements of net position. Due to numerous uncertainties surrounding the Tiyan properties, the 
Authority has noted that it may elect to utilize the excess contribution from the land transfer to 
offset any subsequent obligations by the Government of Guam if so determined by the federal 
government. 

Interest capitalized for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, totaled S1,189,963 and 
5514,920. respectively. 

Airport facilities are located on approximately 236 acres. The Authority has no cost basis in 212 
acres of this property; the remaining 24 acres have a cost basis ofS3,OI4,194. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport AuthOlity, Gua1ll 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

4. Airpol1 Faciliti.s, continued 

In September 2000, the United States Navy (Navy) transferred approximately 1.417 acres of 
property surrounding the Airport facilities to the Authority and the Gov~nment of Guam at no 
cost. This land is recorded at its appraised value of S51 ,210,OOO (at September 2000) and is 
included as a component of capital assets in the accompanying statements of net posnoD. In 
fiscal year 2001. the Navy paid the Authority SIO,OOO,OOO (see Note 11) aod the Authority 3lld 
the Government of Guam assumed the responsibility for the completion of certain environmental 
response actions on the property. 

5. Long·Term R.nnu. Bonds Payabl. 

Long· term revenue bonds payable at September 30, 2013 aod 2012. consist of the following: 

General revenue bonds, Series 2013 (original issue 
ofS247,335.000): 

Varying interest rates (3% - 6%) payable 
semiannually in October and April, principal 
payments due in varying amlUal installments 
with S9,845,OOO due in October 2014 

Ge~1 revenue bonds, Series 2003 (original issue 
of $216,250,000): 

Varying interest rates (1.45% - 5.375%) 
payable semiannually in October and April, 
principal payments due in varying annual 
installments with S9,590,000 due in October 
2012. The bonds were refunded in 2013 

Less current installments 

Add net unamortized premium on bonds 

$247.335.000 

247,335,000 

247,335,000 

2.891 161 

$250226 161 

S 

155005000 

155,005,000 

( 9.590.000) 

145,415,000 

3 551 487 

SI48 966487 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

8. EmploYt'e Benefits and Other 

Employee Retirement Plall 

Employees of the Authority hired before September 30. 1995 are under the Government of 
Guam Employees Retirement System, a defined benefit pension plan (DB Plan). Employees 
hired after September 30. 1995, are members of the new Defined Contribution Retirement 
System (DCRS). Until December 31 . 1999. and for severnl1imited periods after December 31. 
1999, those employees who are members of the defined benefit plan with less than 20 years of 
service at September 30, 1995. had the option to switch to the DCRS . Otherwise, they remained 
under the old plan. 

The DB Plan and the DCRS are administered by the Government of Guam Retirement Fnnd 
(GGRf). to which the Authority contributes based upon a fixed percentage of the payroll for 
those employees who are members of the Plan. 

DB Plall 

The DB Pian is a cost-sharing multiple~mployer plan. A single actuarial valuation is performed 
annually covering all plan members and the same contribution rate applies to each employer. 
GGRF issues a publicly available financial repon that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the DB Plan. That repon may be obtained by writing to the 
GO\'ernment of Guam Retirement Fund. 424 A Route 8, Maite. Guam 96910. or by visiting 
GGRF' s website - www,ggrfcom 

Plan members of the DB Plan are required to contribute a cenain percentage of their annual 
covered salary. The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Authority are 
established and may be amended by the GGRF. 

Statutory contribution rates for employer and employee contributions were 30.09% and 9.50%. 
respectively. for the year ended September 30, 2013, 28.30% and 9.50%, respectively. for the 
year ended September 30. 2012 and 27.46% and 9.50%. respectively, for the year ended 
September 30, 2011. 

Actuarial contribution rates were 30.76%, 30.09% and 28.06% for the years ended September 
30, 2013. 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

During the years ended September 30. 2013. 2012 and 2011. contributions made and accrued, 
which were equal to the required contributions for those years. amonnted to $326.586. $325.013 
and $338,176, respectively. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intelllational Airport Authority, GUlim 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

DCRS 

Contributions into the DCRS. by members are based on an automatic deduction of 5% of the 
member's regular base pay. The contribution is periodically deposited into an individual annuity 
account within t~ DCRS. Employees are afforded t~ oppottunity to select from different 
annuity accounts available under the DCRS. 

Statutory employer contributions into the DCRS for t~ years ended September 30. 2013 and 
2012 are determined using the same rates as the DB plan. Of the amount contributed by t~ 
employer, only 5% of the member' s regular base pay is deposited into the member' s indi"i dual 
annuity account. The remaining amount is contributed towards t~ unfunded liability of the 
defined benefit plan. 

Members of the DCRS who have completed five years of government service, have a vested 
balance of 100% of both member and ffilployer contnbutions plus any earuings thereon. 

Duriug the years ended September 30. 2013, 2012 and 2011. contributions made and amounts 
accrued under the DCRS amounted to $3,418.375. $2.368.797 and $2,314,135, respectively. 

Retirffilent expense amounted to $3,744.961. $2,693.810 and S2.652.311 fur the years ended 
September 30. 2013, 2012 and 2011. respectively. 

Unfunded RBril'ement Fund 

Upon implementation of GASB 68, the Authority estimates that its net position and accrued 
unfunded liability to retirement fund would decrease and increase, respecti\·ely. by 
approximately $6 million at October I , 2013. 

Acc/'Ued Sick Leave 

Public Law 26-86 allows members of the DCRS to receive a lump sum payment of one-half of 
their accumulated sick leave upon retirement. As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority 
has accrued an estimated liability of S178.631 and S159.480, respectively. However, this 
amount is an estimate and actual payout could differ from those estimates. 
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Antonio B, Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

8, Employee Benefits and Othel', continued 

Othe!' Post-Employment Benefits 

Go,-Guam, through its substantive commitment to provide other post-employment benefits 
(OPEB), maintains a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan to provide certain post­
retirement heahhcare benefits to retirees who are members of the GGRF. Under the Plan. known 
as the Go\'Guam Group Heahh Insurance Program, Go.-Guam provides medical. dental. and life 
insurance co.'erage. The retiree medical and dental plans are fully-insured products pro;'ided 
through insurance companies, GovGuam shares in the cost of these plans, with Go,-Guarn' s 
contribution amount set each year at renewal Current statutes prohibit active and retired 
employees from contributing different amounts for the same coverage. As such, Go.-Guam 
contributes substanJialIy more to t)x, cost ofretiree healthcare than to active healthcare. For the 
~ insurance plan. GovGuampro.'ides retirees with $10,000 of life insurance coverage through 
an insurance company. Retirees do not share in the cost of this coverage, Because the Plan 
consists solely of GO\-Gtlam's fum commitment to provide OPEB through the payment of 
premiums to insurance companies on behalf of its eligible retirees, no stand-alone financial 
report is either available or generated, 

During the years ended September 30, 2013. 2012 and 2011 . the Authority's required 
contributions to this Plan totaled approximately $390,000,5367,000 and $338,000, respectively. 

9. Leases 

DFS 

In November 2002, DFS was selected as primary concessionaire fur the airport terminal for a ten 
year term commencing January 2003. 

In accordance with the concession agreement, rental income from DFS shall be the greater of the 
following: 

L Four million dollars (the "minimum guarantee.n ) plus five hundred thousand dollars (the 
"additional rent,), or; 

2. The sum of 20% of gross revenues up to 530 million plus 22.5% of gross revenues 
exceeding $30 million 

During the lease term, the minimum guarantee rent and the additional rent are paid in equal 
monthly installments on or before the fll'st day of each month. 

DFS entered into another concession agreement with the Authority fur a separate additional store 
space for II m;e year term efRctive fiscal year 201 L For each of these agreements, DFS 
guarantees to pay a minintum annual rent of5250,OOO during each lease year, or the percentage 
rent which is 22.5% of annual gross revenues for each lease year, whichever amount is greater. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intemational AiIport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. contiImed 

9. L .. 3 ... S, continu .. d 

DFS, cOllti/llled 

Concession fee income earned from the DFS Concession Agreement for the years ended 
September 30. 2013 and 2012 totaled $5,523.024 and $7.346,397. respectively, and includes 
$523.024 and $2.346.397. respectively. of percentage rent income in excess of the minimum 
guarantee and additional rent on the DFS lease. 

The DFS Concession Agreement expired on July 2013 and was not renewed. As of September 
30. 2013. future minimum lease payment recei,;ables under the remainder of the DFS 
Concession Agreements totaled $250.000. 

Lotte Duty Free Guam, LLC (Lotte) 

In March 2013. Lotte was selected as the primary concessionaire for the airport terminal for a ten 
year term commencing July 2013. 

In accordance with the concession agreement. rental income from Lotte shall be the greater of 
the following: 

1. $15.160,000 (the mmnnum guarnntee) for the main and future rental space and 
$240.000 for the arri,'ll1 retail space plus 1 % of other gross revenues. or; 

2. The sum of the on-site gross revenues multiplied by 30.1% and 25.0%, respectively. for 
the main and future retail space and arrival retail space. respecti".,)y. 

During the lease term, the minimum guarantee rent shall be paid monthly in advance in equal 
installments on the first day of each month. 

DFS Protest 

On May 30. 2013. DFS filed a notice of appeal of the Authority' s denial ofDFS's first protest 
with the Office of Public Accountability (OPA). On December 26. 2013, the OPA issued an 
order that it is precluded from proceeding with DFS ' s appeal at this time. 

On May 30. 2013, DFS also filed a civil action seeking judicial review of the Authority' s denial 
of the first DFS protest. On July 19. 2013. the Court issued a Decision and Order dismissing the 
action for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. 

The Authority filed a motion for monetary sanctions against DFS and its attorneys for alleged 
filing of a frivolous action in the Superior Court. Additionally. the Authority requested that the 
Court reconsider its decision to withdraw statements made by the Court that it exceeded its 
jurisdiction and were inconsistent with its holdings. The Superior Court denied the Authority' s 
motions for sanctions and denied its motion for reconsideration. The Authority has appealed 
these decisions and the matter is currently pending before the Supreme Court ofGualU. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Aitp0l1 Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

9. Leases, continued 

Lotte Duty Free Guam, LLC (Lotte), continued 

The future minimum lease receipts under the remainder of the Lotte Concession Agreements as 
of September 30,2013 are as follows: 

Year ending 
September 30 

2014 
2015 
2016 
1017 
1018 

Thereafter 

SI5.400,000 
15.400,000 
15.400,000 
15,400,000 
15.400.000 
74.433.333 

Total future minimum lease payments receivable S151433.333 

Pac Air Prop,mitlS, LLC 

Effective February 12. 2008 (Commencement Date). the Authority and Pac Air Properties. LLC 
(pac Air) agreed to amend and restate its existing ground kase agreement dated October 31 , 
2006 in its entirety. The new agreement has an initial lease term of fifty (50) years beginning on 
the commencement date, with an option on the pan of Pac Air to renew for an additional ten (10) 
years. In accordance with the agreement. Pac Air shall make agreed-upon capital improvements 
at a cost of no less than $25 million to the leased pt'emises with an area of approximately 
540,000 square feet. On the termination or expiration oftbe lease, capital impt'ovements will be 
surrendered to the Authority. The Authority shall wai\·e rental payments during the construction 
phase but no later than the first two (2) years from the initial term of the lease. Beginning on the 
date of beneficial occupancy. which is on September 1. 2009 the date which marks the end of the 
construction phase and the waiver of rent, the monlhly rent shall amounllo $21,600 but payment 
of such renl shall be deferred for the next five (5) years. al such time Ihe deferred rent shall be 
paid starting on September 1. 2014 in equal monthly installments over the next ten (10) years at 
the same lime and under the same conditions as the regular monthly rent payments. For each of 
the years ended September 30. 2013 and 2012. the Authority accrued renlal income totaling 
$259.200 and is included as a component of rental income in the accompanying statements of 
revenues. expenses and changes in net position. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, accrued rental 
receivable totals $1.058.400 and $799.200. respectively. and is shown as accounts recnvable 
from tenant in the accompanying statements of net position. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

9. Luses, con tinned 

Pac Air Pl"Operties. UC. con hI/lied 

Future minimum rental income under the aforementioned Pac Air lease agreement is as follows : 

Yearendiog 
September 30. 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Thereafter 

$ 259.200 
259.200 
286.200 
286.200 
286.200 

19488 503 

Total future minimum lease payments receivable S?O 865 ~03 

In 2010. the Authority entered into a lease-back agreement with Pac Air to lease a total of 32.500 
square feet of space in the completed fucility on the leased premises for 5 years with annual rent 
expenses of$I .058.400. Rent expense for each ofthe years ended September 30.2013 and 2012 
amounted to $1.058.400 and is included under contractual services in the accompanying 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net positiolL 

On December 2010, the Authority entered into a sublease agreement with the Government of 
Guam's Customs and Quarantine Agency (GovGU8lll CQA) to lease 25.000 square feet of the 
aforementioned 32,500 square feet rental space for 5 years. with annual rental income of 
SI.024.200. Rental income for each of the years ended September 30. 2013 and 2012 amounted 
to $1.024.200 and is included under rental income in the accompanying statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net positiolL 

Future minima) rent expense arising from the Pac Air lease-back agreement and future mjnimal 
sublease income from GovGuam CQA is as follows: 

Lease back Sublease Net (Expense) 
Yearendiog Exo!:;nse Income Income 
September 30 

2014 $(1.058.400) $1 ,024.200 $( 34.200) 
2015 ( 923.400) 1.024.200 100.800 

$(J 981 800) $? O!l8 !IOO S titi ti!lO 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International AiIport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

9. L..ases, continued 

Other Leases 

The Authority has lease agreements with scheduled air carriers, various concessionaires and 
other 8iIport users. The agreements provide the lessees with the use of the airport' s system 
facilities, equipment and services. The signatoty airline operating agreements and terminal 
building leases expire on September 30, 2016. Other ground lease agreements will expire 
ranging from September 2015 through September 2035. The lease agreements with six rent·a· 
car companies will expire in June 2016. 

The future minimum rentals on other noncancellable operating leases (excluding the DFS, Lotte 
and Pac Air and Go.-Guam CQA lease described above) as of September 30, 2013 are as 
follows: 

Year ending 
September 30 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Thereafter 

Total future minimum lease payments receivable 

la, LonK-Term Liabilities 

$ 6,828,000 
6,598,000 
6,154.000 
1,352.000 
1,352,000 
8.792.000 

$31 076000 

A summary of changes in Iong·term liabilities during fiscal years 2013 and 2012 follows: 

0uIstulding Outst:lllding 
September 30. Sq>tembtt30, 

2012 Increases Decreases 2013 Current Noocwrmt 

Accrued sick leave $ 159,480 $ 38,303 S S 197,783 $ S 197,783 

Accrued annual 
lea\~ 995,171 107,635 1,102,806 354,3~ 748,412 

Loan payable to 
bank 5,5~,897 5,333,331 10,928,128 2,163.500 8,6M,728 

2oo3Gtn=l 
ra'ellue balds 155,696,456 155,696,456 

2013~eral 
revmue balds 250 226161 250 "6161 250 '26 161 

$I6244§.004 $255705430 SI55.696.456 $262.4)4.978 S2.6!7.8~ $259 837 .084 
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Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

10. Long-Term Liabilities, continued 

Outstmdiog 
Sqlt<mbor 30, 

2011 Increases 

Accrued sick leave $ 170,548 $ 

Accrued annual 
Ie".., 989,967 5.204 

Lo:m payable to 
bauk 5.594,897 

2003 Gai=l 
re\'eII~ boods 164 2Q1 Ill! 

$166.064.654 SS ·~IOI 

11. Commitments and Contingencies 

Envi"omnelltai Response Actions 

Outstanding 
Sqlt<mbor 30. 

Dea~ 2012 eWellt 

S 11.068 $ 159.480 $ 

995,171 308,095 

5.594,897 217.000 

2~Z~3 I~H2li4~ 2 S2QQQQ 

$9,218,751 $162.446004 SJO 115 995 

Noocumnt 

S 159.480 

687.076 

5.377,897 

1~IQ.H26 

Sml30·909 

As discussed in Note 4, in September 2000, the Navy transferred 1,417 acres of property to the 
Authority and Government of Guam at no cost. In fiscal year 2001 , the Navy paid the Authority 
$10.000,000 as a lump sum but not in accordance to the payment provisions of the Quitclaim 
Deed from the Navy. In exchange fur the payment. the Authority and the Go\-emment of Guam 
apparently assumed obligations for environmental response actions addressing specific 
groundwater contamination even if the cost of the response actions exceeds the $10 million 
received from the Navy. The Authority' s IllllWIgement has received the fmal draft of the 
Decision DocUllll!nt (DD) for Operable Unit 3 (OU3) which is the groundwater located under the 
former Naval Air Station. The DD presents the selected remedy for OU3 which is the remedial 
alternative 3. It calls for extraction and treatment at Well NAS· 1 and future wells. if necessary. 
and natural attenuation. The DD identifies the Navy as the lead agency for the cleanup with 
support agencies that include the Authority. Guam Environmental Protection Agency (GEP A) 
and the US EPA The Na;'Y. the Authority and GEPA are the authorized signatories for the DD. 
The fmal draft of the DD is presently being reviewed by the Authority's attorneys. 

The Authority's responsibilities under the draft DD are limited to sampling and testing as 
currently perfOrmed. The new task is for the Authority to conduct a 5 year review to ensure the 
remedial action is or will be protective of human heahh and the environment. This new task 1WIy 
reduce the ongoing sampling and testing requirements or completely eliminate them. Moreover, 
the granular activated carbon (GAC) treatment provided under the Authority'S new water system 
satisfies the GAC treatment component of future wells meeting the selected remedy. No further 
obligation of the Authority is required under the draft DD. A portion of the remaining balance of 
the $10 million received from the Na;'Y. ahhough reprogrammed to the Capital Improvement 
Fund, will remain as a contingent unencumbered sum to pay for future sampling and testing 
requirements and any potential improvements under the Environmental Services Cooperative 
Agreement that were not constructed under the Authority's water system. 

f 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

11. Commitments and Conting"nci" .•• continue,! 

Em'ironmental Response Actions. cOlltinued 

Th~ long-term obligation to op=te and maintain the faciliti~s built under th~ rem~dial 
construction as well as th~ required sampling will be bandl~d through a water system commercial 
agreement. As ofS~tember 30. 2013. the Authority ~timated. bas~d upon a weighted average 
probabilily of future cash outflows, that its pollution r~~diation obligations as called fur under 
GASB No. 49 Accounting al/d FinO/lcial Reportil/g for PoT/utiOI/ Remediation Obligations 
totaled S153.007. At S~tember 30, 2013 and 2012. future pollution r~~diation and monitoring 
costs totaling S1 53.007 and S354.868, respectively. is reflected as a component of other current 
liabilities in the accompanying stat~nts of net position. 

Federal Program Costs 

The Authority receives, on a r~bursement basis. grants from the U.S. Go"ernment fur certain 
capital construction projects primarily through the AiJport lmpro\'=1ent Program (AIP). The 
Authority also receives grants from other sources. These grants are subject to financial and 
compliance audits to ascertain whether federal laws and regulations have been fullowed. 

As discussed in Note 4, on S~tember 30, 2005 the Authority received a parcel of land with an 
appraised 'l.lIlue ofS2,530,OOO from the Government of Guam. which represented reimbursement 
to the Authority for questiooed costs totaling S564,702 as ofS~tember 30, 2004. that the FAA 
requested for reimbursement. 

As of September 30. 2011. questioned costs estimated to be at approximately S60.000 was 
identified based on the construction costs of interconnections as r~orted by an ind~endent 
engineer during their review of the design and construction of the Authority's water system 
based on tbe grant applications submitted to th~ FAA Based on additional verification by the 
project' s construction manager, the Authority subs~uently reirnburs~d the FAA th~ verifi~d 
amount of approximately 560,000 on July 2012 to r~olve th~ audit finding. The FAA then 
follow~d with a grant ~ndment letter to increase grant funding by S755,815 to reimburse the 
Authority fur incr~ased eligible project costs. 

As ofS~tember 30, 2013, there were no unresolved qu~stioned costs. 

Commitments 

The Authority has commitments totaling approximately Sl O. 7 million under several construction 
contracts at S~tember 30, 2013. 

In addition. the Authority has commitments under other \...nous contracts totaling approximately 
512.2 million at S~tember 30. 2013. 
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Notes to Futancial Statements. contumed 

11. Commitments and Contingencies, continued 

Insurance 

The Authority has adopted a policy of self· insuring its fucilities for earthquake and typhoon 
dawage. The Authority also waintains deposit of $1 million annually in the Renewal and 
Replacement Fund which will be combined with funds in the Risk and Loss Management 
Reserve Fund to cover damage in the event of a natural catastrophe. The balances in the 
Renewal and Replacement Fund and Risk and Loss Management Reserve Fund are $1,000,000 
and $4,852,628 respectively, at September 30, 2013. and $1 ,000,000 and $3,832.707. 
respectively, at September 30. 2012 . The Authority has a catastrophic insurance policy with 
coverage up to $5 million as a supplement to the self· insurance. 

GOl'emmellt of Gual1l General Fund 

Pursuant to 5 GCA Chapter 22 § 22421 Transfer of Autonomous Agency Revenues to 
Autonomous Agencies Col/ections Fund, certain autonomo\lS agencies, to include the Authority. 
are to remit certain amounts to the Government of Guam General Fund at the end of each fiscal 
year. 

On March 31 , 2011. the Authority received an invoice from the Department of Administration 
(DOA) for payment of $12.250.000. representing an annual assessment on the Authority of 
$875,000 for years 1998 to 2011. The Authority is unable to recognize this invoice as a liability 
as it does not conform to the requirements of 5 GCA § 22421 as it is unclear how the annual 
contribution amount of $875 ,000 allocated to the Authority was determined. This does not 
conform to the requirement that the Governor of Guam and the Authority·s Board of Directors 
shall consult and decide on a formula . Moreover, the statute of limitation for prior year 
assessments is limited to three years. 

NOl\vitbstanding the requirements of 5 G.C.A. § 22421 , the Authority is proht'bited by its 2013 
and 2003 General Revenue Bond Indentures (2013 and 2003 Indentures) and federal law from 
transferring any funds from its operating swplus to the General Fund. Any diversion of the 
Authority's revenues under any formula will place the Authority in breach of the 2013 and 2003 
Indentures and will jeopardize ongoing and future federal funding, possibly even subjecting the 
Authority to millions of dollars in federal civil penalties. Accordingly. the Authority cannot 
transfer any of its revenues to the General Fund as directed by 5 G.C.A. § 22421 and no liability 
has been recorded for this contingency as of September 30, 2013 and 2012. This position has 
been supported by legal determinations, past and present. 

The Anthority recognizes that it is an instrumentality of the Government of Guam. The 
Authority may reimburse the Go .... ernment of Guam for costs of ser .... ices and contributions 
provided to the Authority subject to the standards of documentation as required by the FAA's 
Policy and Procedures Concerning the Use of Airport Re ... ·enue. The Authority way also pay fue 
an indirect cost allocation that is reasonable, transparent, calculated similarly fur other 
governmental units and consistent with Attachment A to OMB Circu!ac A-87 and the 
aforementioned FAA policy. 
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Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

11. Commitm~nts and Conting~nd~s, continued 

GOl-enlment of Guam General Flmd. continued 

During the course of 2013. there was no substantive progress on discussioDS with the Executive 
and Legislative branches to repeal 5 GCA § 22421 or on the issue of the GovGuam assessment. 

Water System l"fi'asmIChtre Upgrade 

The new ailport water system was commissioned and made operational in phases during 2012. 
The phasing was required to address the fire protection issues with the airport terminal first and 
to address potential leaks and water loss with the existing piping and val\"es in light of the higher 
water pressures. 

The remaining work under the new airport water system is to install the laterals that connect the 
new infrastructure to the existing structures in north Tiyan that are presently supplied by the old 
Navy water system. This is estimated to be completed by the 2ad quarter offiscal year 2013. 

Concurrent with the commissioning of the new airport water system, the Authority entered into 
an interim agreement with Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA) to operate and maintain the 
water system for a minimum of one year. GW A's system rates will be status quo during the 
interim period. Moreover, the Authority is to monitor the system operatioDS and maintenance 
processes and collect baseline dara fur subsequent negotiations with GW A for a longer term 
agreement. 

Although. the Authority continues to assert that all costs associated with the airport water system 
are supported by adequate documentary evidence, the Authority did reimburse the FAA fur 
questioned costs as noted in the above Federal Prog1'am Costs. As a final measure, the FAA 
would require that the independent engineering firm that perfurmed the review of the airport 
water system project assess that the final agreement between the Authority and GW A confurms 
to the uses as noted in theit report. 

Litigation 

The Authority is involved in certain litigation inherent to its operations. Management is of the 
opinion that liabilities of a material nature will not be realized. 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

11. Commitm"nts and Conting"ndes, continued 

Othel' 

In December of 2012, the Department of Administration paid out merit bonuses for lioe agency 
elllployees who met the criteria set fonh pursuant to 4 GCA Chapter 6 § 6203. Merit bonuses 
are to be paid to enJployees who recei"e a superior rating evaluation conducted fur increment 
purposes. The Authority is currently conducting its due diligence to determine its obligation to 
payout merit bonuses. At September 30. 2013. the Authority has accrued about $1.5 million as 
an estimate of costs to pay bonuses for the airpon employees. In addition. the Authority has 
accrued about S681 ,ooO as costs for the last iocremental 10% salary iocrease for Airport Rescue 
Firdighters and Airpon Police uniformed personnel pursuant to Public Law 29-105. This 
payment is fur fiscal years 2012 and 2013. Management intends to settle this obligation io a 
single distribution and does not expect that this will be a recurriog operating expense. 

Exchange License Agreement 

On April 5. 2012. the Authority and Core Tech International (Core Tech). entered into an 
exchange license agreement for a term of thirty years. The agreement calls for the Authority to 
allow Core Tech the right to use several dilapidated buildings owned by the Authority and io 
exchange, Core Tech allowed the Airpon the use of Core Tech property on which the Authority 
had inadvertently encroached and made improvements on it io prior years. The license 
agreement stipulates that no rent will be charged to either party duriog the thirty year term of the 
agreement. 

Surveys had discovered thai Ihe Authority had encroached onto Core Tech land wherein the 
Authority constructed a parking lot and a drainage pondiog basin as part of renovations to two 
barracks that the Authority leased to Ihe Government of Guam Customs & Quarantine Agency. 

In lieu of receipt of back renlals and future rentals for use of the encroached property, Core Tech 
accepted, in exchange. the use of the Authority's three building that were in a state of disrepair 
and had environmental concerns. The agreement requires Core Tech to make repairs and 
mitigate all environmental issues over the bUildiogs. 

At the time the exchange license agreement was entered into, the fair market values of the assets 
involved by the parties were not determinable. 

[ 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intemational Airport Authority, Guam 

Notes to Financial Statements. continued 

12. Customs, Agriculture ~nd Quarantine Inspection Senices Ch~rge 

During the years ended Septemb"" 30, 2013 and 2012. the Authority has assessed and collected 
from air carriers fees for customs and agticulrural inspection services r~ed at the Airport 
terminaL Guam Public Law 23-45 requires the Authority to remit all collections. within five 
days of receipt, to the Treasurer of Guam for deposit to the Customs, Agricu1ture and Quarantine 
Inspection Services Fund. 

At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority recorded customs fees payable to the Treasurer 
of Guam totaling $1,867,990 and $2,042,986. respectively. for the above charges. of which 
$1 .417.249 and $1,587,544. respectively. are reflected as customs fees. receivables m the 
accompanying statements of net position. The fees are not reflected as 8n expense or revenue by 
the Authority. 

13. Prior Period Adjustment 

As describe !DOre fully in Note 1, the Authority early adopted the provisions of GASB 65. The 
impact to the Authority's net position as of October 1, 2011 and the results of irs op""ations for 
the year ended September 30, 2012, is as follows: 

Net position as of September 30, 2011, 85 
originally reported 

Reversal of deferred bond issue cost 
Reversal of amortization on deferred bond 

issut' cost 

Net position as of September 30. 2011. as 
restated 

Decrease in net position for the year ended 
September 30, 2012, as originally reported 

Rev""sal 0 f amortizat ion on deferred bond 
issue cost 

Decrease in net position for the year ended 
September 30. 2012. as restated 

$ 307,149.064 
( 4.857.336) 

( 763.515) 

$ 301528213 

$( 1,158,679) 

763.515 

$( m 164) 
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Antonio B. Won Pat Intemational Airport Authority. Guam 

Schc:dule of Funding Progress and Actuarial Accrued Liability - Post 
Employment Benefits Other than Pension (Unaudited) 

The Government of Guam maintains a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan to 
provide certain other post-retirement healthcare benefits (OPEE) to relirees who are members of 
the Government of Guam Retirement Fund. Under the PIan. known as the GovGuam Group 
Health Insurance Program, Go,<ruam pro~'ide5 medical, dental, and life insurance coverage. The 
Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam is a participating employer of the 
Plan. 

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents OPEE valuations as of fiscal years ended September 
30, 2011 , 2009, and 2007 for GovGuam's Post Employment Benefits other than Pensions. The 
schedule provides, as a whole for the GovGuam. information trends about whether the actuarial 
values of Plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial acemc:d 
liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Actuarial UAALasa % 
Actuarial Value of Accrued Unfundc:d Funded Coverc:d ofCoverc:d 

Yaluation Date Assets Liability CAAL) MLCUML) IW:il!. PaYToll Pavro!! 

October I, 2007 S SI ,635.223,Ooo $1,635,223,000 0.0% $466,346,000 350.60/. 

October I, 2009 S SI ,852,558,ooo $1 ,852,558.000 0.0% $466,346,000 397.2"10 

October I, 2011 S 52,088,331,000 $2,088,331,000 0.0% $466,346,000 447.8% 

The aforementionc:d actuarial accrued liability presents GASB Statement No. 45. Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by EmployersJor Postemploymllnt Benefits Other Than Pensions, results of 
the OPEB valuation as a whole for the Government of Guam. The actuarial accruc:d liability, as 
of September 30, 2011, attributc:d to the Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, 
Guam. tota~ $19,876,000. 
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Antonio B. WOll Pat International Allport Authority. Guam 

Years ended September 30.2013 and 2012 

Scbedule 1 
FacUies and S~ Usal!" Charges 

2013 2012 

Arm;a) tilcili:ies S 7,336,052 S 6.398,217 
J:lepartwe !3cUirs 6,942,472 6,348,530 
Pas=l!"" badillg brDl!" mage c1mge 4.666,053 3,676,307 
~&s 2.963.427 3.042,109 
hmigratim 2,737.477 2.337,874 
PWIi: apron 1.691.203 2,107,797 
UtiIiry =O\"n}' and olhrr ires 546.453 474.691 
FuellbwlIl!" &s 193,538 183.933 

S 27,076.675 S 24.569.458 

Schedule 2 
Concession Fees 

2013 2012 

Getrra\ m=b:mdise S 9.079.528 S 7,420.798 
Gromd tJamportabJn 5.165,180 4.803,013 
CarImal 948.904 934,605 
Food and be\=1!" 913.962 902,317 
In..~catering 811.521 754.661 
Ad,~ 433,155 452,565 
Money eJIclmJge 352.749 379.211 
Padti!g lot 175,655 134,263 
Olhrr 141,910 117,746 

S 18,022.564 S 15,899,179 

Schedule 3 
Remal Inconr 

2013 2012 

~tiog space: 
-Non-un S 3,997.694 S 3,820,488 
- Aifne 3.469.810 3,103.181 
~ and uU.knm::e sIxlp mBals 1,965,001 1,957,055 
01hrr 1.552.772 1,716.873 
CargomiaIs 266,896 262,890 

S 11,252,173 S 10,861.087 
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Years ended September 30, 201 3 and 2012 

Schedule 4 
Comacrual Senices 

2013 2012 

Power $ 6,468,615 S 6,999,726 
Repa'" am lIlIIim=mce 5,654,711 5,545,945 
Proi-ssioml sen'i:es 2,842,162 2.618,726 
Miscellaneous 1,717,972 1,405,350 
Insmure 1,356,787 1.384,319 
UtiIiIrs am tdepmne 690.799 519,968 
Ad\mr.q; aDd proDDlKllIS 460,270 331,045 
TIlI\'d'I'mmmg am Cetti&:atK>ns 195,803 144,974 

$ 19,387.119 S 18,950,053 

Schedule 5 
PmOlllllOI Sen'i:es 

2013 2012 

Salaries aDd wasrs S 12,883,180 S 10,356,825 
Rrti:em:t:( COlllri>UlDIIS 3,744,961 2,763,279 

Insmure 835,516 797,128 

S 17,463,657 S 13,917,232 

Fun.ti= ~lo~ comt m Septrn:ber 190 192 

Schedule 6 
Materials am S~lies 

2013 2012 

~ aDd .-ebicJe _iotenaoce am supplrs S 415,630 S 514,130 
MiscelaneoUi 237,433 206,562 
01li:e am s=riy supplies 227.685 263,707 
Electtral am pbIDiog 130,780 103,052 
B>.w!ing _imtmoce aDd supplies 67,226 91,036 

$ 1,078,754 $ 1,178,487 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International AiIpolt Authority, Guam 

NameofInslRr 

Doogbu lnsIr.mce Co, LId. 
Seoul, Korea 

Doughu lnsIr.mce Co., LId . 
Seoul, Korea 

Do .. lnsIr.mce Co .. LId. 
Seoul, Korea 

Doughu lnsIr.mce Co .• LId. 
Seoul, Korea 

Doogbu lnsIr.mce Co, Lrd. 
Seoul, Korea 

Doogbu Instr.mce Co., LId. 
Seoul, Korea 

Doughu lnsIr.mce Co, LId. 
Seoul, Korea 

Year ended September 30, 2013 

Schedule 7 
lnslr.ux:e CO\=ge 

Poln 

Arpon OperntKms Uabiiry 

Propmy Imur:ure 

C3bSttOpbe Insuance 

OreclOtS & 01licer.; Uabiiy 

(Sublinit oesl .OOO.OOO mr 
Empb}'Dl"lll Ptacti:es LDbu.y) 

AulDtmbir 

Wolkers' Cotqlensati>n 

ere lnslr.ux:e 

RiskCo\!¥ 

S 500.000,000 

$ 200,000,000 

$ 5.000,000 

$ 4.000.000 

$ 2,000,000 

$ 1,000,000 

S 1,000,000 
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Ai1pOlt Autholity, Guam 

Years ended September 30. 2013 and 2012 

CIIan8e n ~t posili= 
R.e,~mes 

ElIpenses 

Income befure depreciation 

Sch!dule8 

Intttest and other expenses 

TClnSEriomtheGo\"~ofGuam - OHS 

Grants !rom the United Stites Go'=JeDf 

Increase (decr~) n ~t posiiln 

Net R.e\~ (per Bond R.esoUtion): 
R.e\~~ 

Opel3tionand mUumnce ~ 

Net m.~ 3,"al1ab~ in" debt sen'ice 

R.ecollCJlia lion: 
Ch:qe n ~t posilXm 
Add back: 

Dtpreciation 
Interest expense 
Miscellaneous 

Dedlrt 
Capila1 ~ from the Uoi!ed Stites Go\"~mn~t 
Interest nco= on timds related to cons1nl:tiJn 

Other a,-aibb~ monies 

FUIlds a\'ailab~ in" debt sen'ice 

DebtSm'ice* 

Year ended Septeniln" 30, 

2012 
2013 As R.estlted 

$ 69,343,477 $ 59,768,862 

( 38.426.706 ) ( 35.151."29 ) 

30,916,771 24,617,633 

( 22.668.001 ) ( 24.193 .004 ) 

8,248,770 

( 10.630.516 ) ( 
14,701 

17.435.986 

$ 15,068.941 $( 

$ 69343.477 $ 
( 38.024.802 ) ( 

$ 31,318,675 $ 

$ 15,068.941 $( 

22,668,001 
6,093 ,981 

4,073 ,997 ( 

( 16,489,713 ) ( 
( 96,532 ) ( 

31,318,675 

4.328.486 

$ 35.647,161 S 

$ 17.313.944 S 

424,629 

7,597,613 ) 

26,388 

6.751.432 

395.164 ) 

59,768,862 
35,423.950 ) 

24,344,912 

395.164 ) 

24,193,004 
7,164,599 

116,708 ) 

6,369,134 ) 
131,685 ) 

24,344,912 

4.317.380 

28:662.292 

17.269,519 

* amounts of the aggregate annual debt sen; ce for such fiscal years as defined in the 2003 Bond 
Indenture Agreement 
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Note(s): 

Years ended September 30. 2013 

Board 

Administratian 

Propcny Management 

PI:uwing 

Accounting 

Engineering 

Operatians 

Pro~es & Facilities 

Maintenance 

AiIport Police 

Aircr.Ift Rescue Fire 

Fighting 

Schedule 9 
Employee Data 

Employees (b) 

I 

30 (c) 

9 

I 

10 

3 

19 

40 

48 

29 

Total 190 

a. Expenditures above are fimcled by Operating & Maintenance Fund Account. 

Personnel Sffilices (a) 

$ 57.095 

2.704,693 

825,559 

94,040 

884,279 

299,293 

1,722,724 

2.690.676 

4,524.772 

3,660,526 

$ 17,463.657 

b . Filled positions, not includWg limited Tenn AppoinbOents related to AiIport Police pUfSll30t to 
Transportation Security Administration mandated 

c. Administration consists of: 

Executive management 
Administrati~'e support 
Persoonrl 
Malketing 

ProC1lrenlent 

Management information system 

2 
11 
3 

3 
7 
4 

30 
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